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Preface

The study of the history of our country is every year becoming
more and more important. New books for the young on history,
biography, and historical fiction are constantly appearing. It is now
very generally admitted that this study should be taken up at an
earlier age than has hitherto been customary. Everybody now agrees
that the schools should have an elementary book preceding the regu-
lar, systematic pursuit of this branch in the two higher grades of the
grammar school.

But this preliminary book should not be an “ epitome” of the his-
tory of our country. It ought not to be a history for more mature
pupils, boiled down to the size of a small book for smaller boys and
girls. Such a book should have no place in the schools. The bio-
graphical plan has great advantages for beginners in the study of this
subject. History is a record of events. Events presuppose acfors,
who bring about the events. It is the action of men and women
that makes history both valuable and interesting.

Another important factor in this elementary study of history is to
create a love for the study in the minds of the children. It is, there-
fore, necessary that this early treatise should be written in the most
entertaining and engaging manner. To this end but few characters
can be made prominent. The leading events of each period are made
to cluster around a few leading persons, There are many other great
personages in the history of our country, but it is by no means neces-
sary to give them a place in this preliminary book. A proper presen-
tation of the lives of the “history-makers” will tend to cultivate a
taste for further reading and study. As an aid to teachers and pupils,
a select list of books appropriate for supplementary reading has been .
prepared.

In a book like this, the authors have thought it important to confine
the attention of the pupils principally to the text itself. Hence they
have omitted all analyses, reviews, foot-notes, appendices, etc.
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Recitations should be both by topics and by questions. A few
topics have been introduced at the end of each chapter. These are
merely suggestive and more should be added by every teacher. Of
course the topical recitation should be supplemented by questions
which the teacher will devise at the time, and which will tend to bring
out the main points of the lesson, especially those that the pupils have
failed to note in reciting upon the topic. It is expected that each
teacher will prepare and use his own questions, appropriate to the
particular class under his instruction, according to the advancement,
age, grade, and capacity of the class and the amount of time at his
disposal.

The authors accordingly have not thought it best to introduce full
and complete sets of questions, either to save time or to aid the teacher
in conducting the recitation. They have, however, presented a few
typical “thought-questions” at the end of each chapter. These are
prepared only as hints and pointers, to suggest such a course to the
teacher as will help to avoid the too usual parrot-like method of study
—learning the words of the text but not getting down to the thought.
These questions can be answered by the study of the text and by
proper thought upon what the text says. Different answers to these
questions by different pupils are to be encouraged by the teacher.
Independence of thought and expression is of deep importance.

In the teaching of history, geographical connections should be con-
stantly observed. The study of history aids the geography and the
geography is everywhere an aid to the history. At the time that the
pupils are studying history by this book they are usually studying
geography also. Each will help the other.

The authors have not thought it wise to introduce many dates.
Only a few should be memorized at this early period. It is recom-
mended that all dates in the text which are found in parentheses
should not be memorized. Neither should the dates at the beginning
of the chapters, which show the years of the birth and the dcath of the
person whose name heads the chapter, be committed to memory.

W. A M
A. M M
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1436-1506 1. THE BEGGAR

ON the shore of the Mediterranean Sea, where the penin-
sula of Italy widens to join the continent of Europe, stands
the city of Genoa. Here, four hundred and fifty years ago,
was born a boy who became a great sea-captain and who made
one of the most famous voyages recorded in the history of the "
world.

This boy’s name was Christopher Columbus. His early
life was very much like that of many other Italian boys.
He went to school long enough to know something about
arithmetic, geography, and astronomy, and to read Latin.
His father was a wool-comber; that is, a man who combs out
the wool and prepares it for the weavers.

For a while Christopher worked at his father’s trade, as it
was the custom at that time for the eldest boy to have the
same trade as his father. But he soon determined that he
did not want to stay in Genoa and comb wool all his life.
Instead, he wanted to go to sea and learn something of the
world.

It is not strange that he had this desire. Genoa was a
busy seaport town, many of its inhabitants were sailors, and



16 FIRST STEPS IN THE HISTORY OF OUR COUNTRY.

vessels were continually coming and going in its beautiful

harbor. Columbus, like other boys, doubtless enjoyed going

down to the wharves and hearing the sailors tell stories of the

countries they had seen.

When he was about fourteen years old he became a sailor,

and for years led an adventurous life. He took part in many

sea-fights and sailed wherever vessels

‘ aiture. People now would not

great traveler, but in those

days sailors were afraid

to go far from sight of

land, and what seems to

us a short distance was

then a very long journey.

If we should take a

map of the world as it was

known five or six hun-

dred years ago and com-

pare it with the maps of

to-day, we should find a

great difference. There

was no North nor South

America, no Australia, on

the maps that Columbus

THE POY COLUMBUS. studied. People did not

even dream that any such lands existed. Europe was the

only continent that was well known. Only the northern

portions and some parts of the western coast of Africa had
been visited, and most of Asia was unexplored.

The unknown lands were thought to be filled with huge

dragons and other fearful beasts; the men, instead of being

small like the inhabitants of Europe, were supposed to be
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great and terrible giants. Sailors said that in the Atlantic
Ocean were monsters so large that they could take vessels
upon their backs and dash them in pieces. Many other
foolish and impossible stories were also believed.

When Columbus was a young man people were beginning
to get over these notions. The compass had been invented,
which showed sailors how to direct their vessels, even when

IRILAONDA

TOSCANELLI'S MAP,
1474
Oolsmbus das this map before Ae-

oalled. * It capiatne ths advamosd
4dea of the slse of the world af that
time and Aow Aé éxpected to find

THE MAP THAT COLUMBUS STUDIED.

they could not see land, or sun, or stars. Now they were
able to go farther from the shore. When the terrible things
which they expected to find did not appear, they grew braver
and the next time sailed a little farther.

More than a hundred years before the birth of Columbus,
a man named Marco Polo wrote a book in which he described
his travels in Asia. Wonderful stories of countries almost
unknown were told. He said that these lands were rich in

gold and jewels, and that fragrant spices and costly woods
2
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were abundant. Of course people were anxious to see these
countries and obtain wealth. But to do this they would have
to make an expensive and dangerous journey across Asia on
camel-back. So some of the wise men thought that if ves-
sels could only sail around the southern part of Africa, it
would be an easier and less costly journey.

Columbus, while a young man, had been doing something
more than fighting and sailing from one country to another.
He had been reading books on geography and science, and
he had thought and planned until finally an idea took com-
plete hold of him. The idea was this. If he could sail
straight west across the Atlantic Ocean, he thought that he
would reach the eastern coast of Asia and thus make a shorter
voyage than that around Africa. This would prove that the
world was round and not flat, as everybody still believed
except a few of the most learned men.

How could Columbus carry out his plan? He had no
ships and he had no money to buy them. He was but a poor
sailor, supporting himself by making maps and charts. Be-
sides, only some king or prince could send out an expedition
such as would be needed, and Columbus had no friends at
court to take up his cause. At the very beginning his plan
seemed hopeless, and a less persistent man would have given
up in despair.

- Portugal had been for a long time more interested in
sending out vessels on voyages of discovery than any other
country of Europe. Columbus thought that its king might
listen to his plan and give him help. Therefore he went to
Lisbon and in time came before the king. King John called
all his wise men together. They discussed the matter, and
decided that it was impossible to make a voyage such as Co-
lumbus planned.
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Some said, however, that there might be something in it,
and that it would be a shame for Portugal to lose the glory
of making the discovery. Therefore they decided to send
out a vessel privately, without the knowledge of Columbus.
This vessel sailed westward a few days, and then, because
the sailors became frightened, came back and reported that

COLUMBUS RIDICULED IN COURT.

the voyage could not be made. Columbus was very angry
with the king when he learned of his deceit. He left Portu-
gal and went to try his fortunes at the Court of Spain.
Columbus could hardly have chosen a more unfortunate
time to seek aid from Ferdinand and Isabella, the king and
queen of Spain. They were in the midst of a fierce and
costly war against the Moors, who had possession of the
southern part of the Spanish peninsula. It could scarcely be
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expected that they would be willing to furnish money to aid
an entire stranger, unless they were quite sure that his plan
would be successful. Consequently Columbus was put off
again and again.

At one time the king and queen went so far as to ask the
opinions of the wisest men of the kingdom. These learned
meh laughed at the idea, and brought up all the old argu-
ments and superstitions to prove that Columbus was entirely
wrong. Columbus, however, was not easily discouraged, for
he believed thoroughly in his plan. A few noblemen became
his friends, but many thought him crazy. He was called the
“man with the cloak full of holes.” Even the children in the
streets would point at him as he passed by.

At last Columbus became quite discouraged and decided
to leave Spain. Taking his boy by the hand, he started on
the .long journey to France on foot. One day, tired and
hungry, they stopped at the door of a convent, and Columbus
asked for a bit of bread and a cup of water for his son.
While they were resting, the prior walked by, and seeing
the strangers stopped to talk with them. It was not long
before he drew out the story of the traveler’s life. He
became interested, and he determined, if possible, to keep
Columbus in Spain.

This good man had once been Queen Isabella’s priest,
and he knew that she would listen to what he said. There-
fore he kept Columbus at the convent and hurried off to see
the queen. He told her that Columbus was an honest man,
and that what he said was true. To be sure, it would cost
something to help him, but what would a little money be
compared with the glory that would fall to Spain if the voy-
age should be successful?

Queen Isabella listened to the priest’s plea and sent for
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Columbus to come back to court. He arrived just as the
Moors surrendered. Soon after, he was summoned before
the king and queen to describe his plans again, but he de-
manded so high a reward if he came back successful that they
declared it would be impossible to help him. He would not
accept anything less, and again everything was given up.

Columbus mounted his donkey and started once more for
France. But the queen soon became sorry that she had al-
lowed him to leave. She sent messengers after him in great
haste to tell him that she had decided to furnish the money
for ships and provisions for the voyage. Once more Colum-
bus turned back. All the long weary years of waiting were
at an end. At last the time had come to prove to those who
had made such sport of him that he was not so wholly wrong
after all. ‘

Tell the story of Columbus: as a boy; as a sailor; at the court of
King John; at the Court of Spain; at the convent; as, at last, he
obtains aid. )

Give an account of Marco Polo and the effect of his book.

Explain what was the great idea of Columbus.

How did the studies of Columbus, when a boy, help him in his
great discovery? What route of travel did people use in going to Asia
after spices and jewels? Why did people think that the earth was not
round? Why did Columbus seek help from the courts rather than
from rich men? Why was Columbus angry with the King of Portugal?
Why was Columbus nicknamed? What made the prior interested in
the poor beggar?

Colrmbus cronsing the Allanbs.
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2. THE PRINCE

WE must not think that everything suddenly became
smooth and easy for Columbus. He must get together ves-
sels, men, and provisions, and this was a difficult task. Sail-
ors were very superstitious and could scarcely be induced to
go on this unknown voyage. They thought that if they went
they would never see home and friends again. At last two
brothers named Pinzon, who had wealth and influence, de-
cided to go with Columbus. Others were induced to join
them, and in time three little vessels were ready.

These were very small, not so large as many of our fish-
ing-boats. We should consider them hardly fit to sail from
one port to another along the coast. In fact, only one of the
three had a deck over the whole vessel. In the other two
the deck covered only a part of the hold. Is it any wonder
that the sailors were afraid to go?

Columbus, however, was not afraid. He believed he was
going to succeed, and succeed he did, though not exactly as
he expected. He thought that he was going to find the east-
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ern coast of Asia, and King Ferdinand gave him a letter of
introduction to the King of China. We shall see whether he
had a chance to use it or not.

Finally the last good-byes were said, and on one bright
summer morning the little vessels turned their prows west-
ward and were gone. For two days all
went well, but, on the third, one of the __. ===
vessels broke its rudder. Fortunately —=__.
ihey were not far from the
Isles; they sailed into port tc
the rudder and change the sails
of the vessels.

After spending nearly a
month at the islands, they
once more set sail and went
on day after day, though
it seemed as if each day
brought them no mnearer
land. The sailors became
frightened at the length of
the voyage, and Columbus
felt obliged to keep from
them the true number of
miles they sailed each day. Besides, the needle of the
compass did not point just as it did at home, and the wind
always blew from the east. The sailors thought that they
surely would never get home again, for they would need a
west wind to help them sail back. One day the wind
changed and that trouble was ended.

Still every strange thing frightened them, and their fear
increased as each day went by and no land appeared. At
one time they talked of throwing Columbus overboard, so
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that they might be free to go home. We must not blame
them too severely for this. They were only poor ignorant
sailors, and had never been so far from home before. All
watched eagerly for land; nearly every day some one raised
the cry of “Land!” This served only to make them more
disappointed when what they saw proved to be only a cloud
on the horizon.

At last all decided that land must be near. Many little
birds flew about the vessels; a fish which only lives near the

14
\ ~ &
sy,
e
azoau".a o
"0 . '/:'/
A RARY 13
c:,-;::lhmmm
%';ﬂ PANIOLA
ROUTE OF COLUMBUS. e

. shore was seen; a branch with red berries floated by; and a
piece of wood, with marks on it that could only have been
made by men, was picked up. All murmuring ceased, and
every one was on the watch to be the first to catch sight of
the long-desired land.

One night, as Columbus stood on the deck of his vessel,
he thought he saw a light far off in the distance, which flashed
out brightly several times and then vanished. Later, the cry
of “Land! land!” came from one of the vessels. This time
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it was no false call. With daylight a beautiful island covered
with green trees and tropical plants appeared. The vessels
were anchored; boats were lowered; and Columbus and his
companions, richly dressed, were rowed to the shore.

As soon as they landed, Columbus knelt, kissed the earth,
and gave thanks to God for having brought them safely on
their voyage. Then he arose, planted his flag, and took pos-
session in the name of Ferdinand and Isabella of Spain. We
must not forget the day on which Columbus reached the
island, as it is the first important date in the history of the
New World. It was October 21st, 1492 (or October 12th by
the old style of reckoning).

The inhabitants of the island, who at first had been fright-
ened and had fled, now came up, bringing simple presents.
They had never before seen men with white skins nor boats
with great sails. They thought that the vessels were huge
birds which had come from heaven, and that the men were
gods. They gave the newcomers the best they had and
treated them as superior people. Poor creatures! it was not
many months before they found that these white people were
very unlike gods.

The natives had a dark, copper-colored skin, and wore
little or no clothing. Their hair was straight and black, their
eyes bright, and their bodies well formed. They lived an
easy, simple life. Everything they needed for food grew
abundantly and was close at hand. So long as they had plenty
to eat and shelter from storms, they required nothing else.
Columbus called them Indians, because he thought that the
island was off the coast of India. This name they kept, even
after it was found that they did not live on one of the East
Indies, but in a new and hitherto wholly unknown part of the
world.
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After this the vessels sailed from one island to another,
seeking the rich kingdoms of Asia and gold. But Asia did
not appear and gold was obtained only in small quantities.
Among the islands discovered was Hayti, which Columbus
called Hispaniola or Little Spain. Here his largest vessel
went ashore through the carelessness of one of the sailors,
and could not be repaired. .

Columbus decided that this would be a good place to leave
some of his followers. These men were to make a home on
the island and put things in readiness, so that others could
come out from Spain and join the colony. He built a fort
from the timbers of the wrecked vessel, left on the island
about forty men, and started back to Spain.

It was then winter and a severe storm came on. It seemed
as though the vessels would be destroyed and all on board
lost. Therefore Columbus wrote two accounts of his voyage
and his discoveries, and put them in two casks. These he
" placed on the deck in such a manner that. if the vessel sunk
they would be washed off. He hoped that in time they
might float to shore and tell the story of the voyage, even if
the whole expedition were lost. .

Fortunately the vessels were not destroyed, and the port
of Palos was reached in safety. There was great rejoicing in
Spain at the return of the expedition. A procession was
formed, in which Columbus rode in state, preceded by the
Indians whom he had brought back with him and by men
bearing fruits and treasures from the land which he had
discovered.

He was treated like one of Spain’s greatest noblemen,
and was given a seat in the presence of the king and queen
while he told them the story of the voyage. How dif-
ferent was this from his first entrance into Spain! Then
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he was a poor, unknown man—now he was a prince, honored
by all. '

Almost immediately preparations were made for a second
voyage. This time there was no difficulty in finding men
willing to go. Every one, from the poorest sailors to the
nobles in court, wanted to gain a fortune in the new land.
In a few months, seventeen vessels and fifteen hundred men
were ready. They reached the islands without mishap, and
anchored in the harbor
near which the colony had
been left the year before.

No signs of men or
buildings were to be seen.

The place was deserted and
the fort completely de-
stroyed. Columbus sought
another place in which to
leave his new colony. He
selected a harbor thirty or
forty miles distant, and
commenced to build a city.
This city, the first in the
New World, was named
Isabella, in honor of the
Queen of Spain. ' COLUMBUS RETURNING IN CHAINS,

Now began Columbus’
misfortunes. He was well fitted for a life of exploration;
he was a man of great earnestness and persistence of pur-
pose, but he was not a good governor. He made many mis-
takes and more enemies. When it was found that gold
was not to be picked up everywhere as was expected, and
that every one was obliged to work hard to obtain even a
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living, the colonists became very angry and declared that
Columbus was an impostor.

So many complaints came from the colony to Spain that
at last Ferdinand sent out a man to look into the truth of the
stories. He thought it a good opportunity to make himself
governor; therefore he put Columbus in chains and sent him
back to Spain. Upon his arrival the people were indignant
at the treatment he had received. They thought that even if
he had made mistakes he ought not to have been sent home

HOW MUCH COLUMBUS DISCOVERED,
(The white portions of the map show the land whick ke discovered.)

like a common criminal. The king and queen received him
kindly and gave him back his property; but they decided
not to send him again as governor of a colony.

Columbus made four voyages of discovery in all. Soon
after his last voyage he died, worn out by his many troubles.
His body was carried across the Atlantic and buried on the
Island of Hayti, which he had discovered. When that island
was ceded to France, his remains were again taken over sea
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and with great pomp deposited in the Cathedral in Havana,
where they remained until 1898, when the Spanish, after
their defeat by the United States, were granted permission
to take them to Spain. ‘

To Christopher Columbus belongs the honor of being the-
“Discoverer of the New World,” even though it does not
bear his name and though he died still believing that it wasa
part of Asia.

Tell the story of the preparations for the voyage; the voyage itself;
the watching for land; the taking possession of the island; the re-
turn to Spain; the second voyage; the harsh treatment of Columbus;
his later life.

Describe the people whom Columbus found on the islands.

How did the Pinzon brothers aid Columbus? Did Columbus give the
letter to the king of China? What do you think made the light which
Columbus saw? How many years have passed since the discovery of
America? What changed the Indians’ idea of the white men? Why
did Columbus build a fort? How did the Spaniards expect to gain a
fortune in the newland? What became of the fort and the men whom
Columbus left behind?

COAT OF ARMS OF COLUMBUS,




ON the maps drawn four and five hundred years ago, the
Atlantic Ocean, instead of a broad expanse of water west of
Europe, was represented as being full of islands. Many sto-
ries of these islands were told by sailors, who said that land
could frequently be seen, lying low on the horizon, as the
sun set over the western sea.

Some of the islands were supposed to be large and impor-
tant, especially the Island of Brazil and the Island of the
Seven Cities. The latter was said to be inhabited by Chris-
tians, who, years before, had fled from seven cities of Asia
under their seven bishops, and had taken refuge across the
ocean. ‘ '
For years the merchants of Bristol, England, had sent out
vessels to search for these fabled islands. One of the com-
manders of these expeditions was John Cabot. He had been
one of the foremost in these explorations, as he felt quite cer-
tain that, somewhere in the western ocean, land could be
found. Thus far he had been unsuccessful, for he had at no
time sailed far enough west to reach the American coast.
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- John Cabot, like Columbus, was born at Genoa, but he
had lived for many years in Venice and is usually called a
Venetian. He was a skilled and experienced seaman, who
had sailed on many waters and had been in many countries.
He had traveled east as far as Mecca, the Holy City of Ara-
bia. There he had seen caravans loaded with fragrant spices
that had come from the far East. He asked those who had
charge where these spices grew, and received the answer that
they had been brought by other caravans that had come from
still farther east.

Whether Cabot had reasoned that these rich lands of Asia
could be reached by sailing west is not certain. But as soon
as the news of Columbus’ discovery reached England, Cabot
immediately decided that he could sail west and reach the
coast of Asia\‘also.

King Henry VII. of England, who naturally desired to
share with Spain in the new discoveries, was pleased at the
plan and promises of Cabot. He gave him and his three sons
permission to sail, and soon a little ship was made ready for
the voyage. This vessel was called the Mazthew, and had a
crew of but eighteen men. Three or four other vessels were
fitted out for trading-purposes by the merchants of Bristol.
These started with Cabot, but it is supposed that they went
only a short distance and then turned back, leaving the little
Matthew to sail on alone.

There is little known about this first voyage, except that
it began early in May (1497). Cabot probably encountered
but few storms or serious hardships, as land was reached in
June. This land, which Cabot called Newfoundland, is now
known as Cape Breton Island, and is separated from Nova
Scotia by a narrow channel.

Thus Cabot was the first to find the mainland of Amer-
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ica. Although Columbus had by this time made a second
voyage across the Atlantic, he had gone no farther than the
islands that lie some distance from the coast. Not until the
year after Cabot discovered the North American continent
did Columbus succeed in reaching the coast of South America.

It was no fertile, tropical land that Cabot found, but a bar-

CABOT’S SHIP AMONG ICEBERGS.

ren and unproductive region. No natives came to the beach
to welcome him, thinking that the newcomers were gods. So
long as the vessel stayed no Indians appeared. Still it was
decided that there must be some inhabitants, as traps were
discovered in the woods, arranged for catching wild animals.
A needle for net-making was picked up. Besides, many
trees were found notched, perhaps to guide those who were
traveling through the forests. Cabot and his men, however.
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did not stay long enough to make a very thorough search.
As they had but little food with them, they started back to
England in a few days. _

Their arrival caused the greatest excitement. The report
was spread that Cabot had discovered the Island of the Seven
Cities and a portion of the coast of Asia. A writer of the
time says that the Englishmen followed Cabot “1like madmen.”
He was called “the Great Admiral.” He dressed in silk and
was treated like a prince. Cabot, unlike many others, did
not wish to keep all his good fortune to himself. Instead,
he wanted his friends and neighbors to share it with him.
Some he appointed governors, others he made bishops over
the new land which he had discovered.

King Henry was so delighted at the success of the ex-
pedition that he sent its leader the sum of £10, or about $50
of our money. This seems a very small sum for a rich king
to send to a man who had performed such a service as Cabot
had. But Henry was a miserly king and it probably seemed
a large sum to him. Besides, money went a great deal farther
then than now.

The next year a larger expedition was fitted out. Cabot
planned to go west until he reached the land he had found
the year before. Then he thought that if he sailed south he
would come to the Island of Cipango, or Japan, where he ex-
pected to fill his vessel with spices and jewels. Five or six
ships started out early in the spring. This time Cabot sailed
farther north than before—so far that the ships met many
icebergs and the days were so long that there was almost no
night. The sailors became frightened at the quantity of ice,
and the vessels were turned to the south.

From Labrador Cabot sailed along the coast of North

America until he nearly reached the peninsula of Florida.
3
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But England was at war with Spain. The Spanish Ar-
.mada, of nearly a hundred and fifty vessels, was preparing
to make an attack upon the English. Raleigh, like all other
true Englishmen, was devoting his energies to aid in ward-
ing off the attack. The little band of exiles on Roanoke

DESTRUCTION OF AN EARLY SETTLEMENT BY THE INDIANS,

Island must wait a while. Two vessels, it is true, were sent
“to carry them supplies, but both met Spanish ships and were

_driven back to England. It was three years after Governor
White sailed out of Roanoke Harbor before an English res-
cue fleet arrived.

~ The little settlement was nowhere to be seen. Scarcely
any remains were found to indicate that white men had ever
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United States study the story of this almost unknown
man?

The reason is that, because of these two voyages of John
Cabot, England laid claim to the whole Atlantic coast from
Labrador to Florida. Because she laid claim to it, she sent
out colonists to take possession. And because she sent colo-
nists, the people of the United States speak the English lan-
guage. Had it not been for John Cabot, we might now have
for our native tongue the Spanish language, as do the people
of Mexico and most of the nations of South America.

Give an account of the fabled islands. Tell the story of Cabot: in
early life; on his first voyage; on his return; on his second voyage.

Tell why. Cabot supposed the new land to be inhabited.

Tell Cabot’s story of the fish.

Do you suppose the fabled islands were really the coast of America,
or were they low-lying clouds? What was the difference between the
aid given by Queen Isabella to Golumbus and that by King Henry to
Cabot? Why do some people claim that Cabot and .ot Columbus dis-
covered America? Do you think that Cabot ever knew that the land
he had found was not Asia? Why do you suppose we know so little
about the life of John Cabot?

THE ROYAL ARMS OF ENGLAND.,



WHEN it was known that a new world had been discovered
beyond the Atlantic, great excitement took possession of the
inhabitants of Spain. A splendid opportunity was now
thrown open to all who were brave and adventurous to ex-
plore these new regions.

Those who were poor expected to gain great wealth, and
those who were already rich wanted to add still more to their
abundance. Not only was it said that gold, silver, and jew-
els could be obtained in great quantities, but it was also re-
ported that somewhere in this new world was a wonderful
fountain. If any one who was old should bathe in its waters,
almost immediately his lost youth would return to him. This
in the eyes of many would be of more importance than all the
gold or jewels in the world. Therefore it was not strange
that expedition after expedition was sent out, for all were
anxious to obtain youth and riches.

One of the bravest of the leaders of these expeditions was
the young and courageous Ferdinand de Soto. He belonged
to a noble Spanish family, but was so poor that when he went
on his first voyage he had no outfit but kis sword and shield.
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He was the bravest of the brave, however, and his valor soon
made up for his poverty. He gained riches in Peru and was
promoted step by step until he became Governor of Cuba and
‘President of Florida.

Some one who had been to Florida had said that it was the
richest country in the world. This traveler, seeing with the
eyes of imagination, must have thought that the sand, spar-
kling in the sunshine, was
gold, and the many bright
colored flowers jewels.

But everybody shared
fully in this belief, and
thousands were eager to
go. So many prepared
for the voyage that the
ships would not hold
them, and thus, disap-
pointed, some had to stay
behind. On a- Sunday
morning in early spring
time (1539) seven ships set sail, with De Soto and six hun-
dred eager companions on board.

After touching at Cuba, De Soto arrived at Tampa Bay,
on the western coast of Florida, without disaster. His plan
was to go anywhere and everywhere in search of gold. At
first he endeavored to capture some Indians who would serve
as guides and interpreters.

He met with a remarkable piece of good fortune. He
came upon a Spaniard, John Ortiz, who had been seized by
the Indians many years before. He had lived with the red
men, first as a captive cruelly treated, and afterward as a
friend and counsellor; consequently he knew their language

THE LONG MARCH OF DE SOTO.
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and customs perfectly. No better guide and interpreter could
have been found, and he was not at all unwilling to leave his
Indian friends and cast in his lot with De Soto.

Now began a terrible march, northward and westward.
The ground was covered with thick woods. Vines and tan-
gled creepers ran from tree to tree. There were no roads
except here and there Indian paths. The country was full of
bogs and marshes, in which the horses stuck fast and sank.
Every few miles rivers were reached—some wide, some nar-
row. When the travelers came to one that could not be
forded, they made a rude bridge of trees; if the rivers were
especially wide, they built boats. At times provisions were
scarce, and men and horses grew thin and ill for lack of proper
food.

Added to all this, the Indians were hostile and treacher-
ous. In the land through which De Soto first passed, white
men had been before. These had treated the Indians with
great cruelty, and the red men, in their turn, were ready to
fight and deceive whenever it was possible.

Then, too, De Soto was not more wise than the Spaniards-
whom the Indians had previously seen. When he passed
into a region entirely unknown to white men, he was for a
time received with kindness. The chiefs placed all their
braves at his service, and gave him plenty of food for his
men and horses; in fact, they gave him the best they had.
But it did not take many days for this to change. De Soto
was cruel; he captured the chiefs and made the Indians
slaves, compelling them to carry his heavy burdens. If they
rebelled or deserted they were tortured and killed. There-
fore it is not strange that many battles were fought and
many lives were lost.

All this time no gold was discovered. The Indians con-
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tinually told stories of rich villages to the west. But when
these settlements were reached, nothing of importance was
found except a few pearls, which had been ruined by having
holes bored through them. It was like following a will-o’-

THE BURIAL OF DE SOTO

the-wisp. Still they pushed on, their number daily growing
smaller and the survivors weaker, ever hoping to find the
fabled gold.

Finally they reached a mighty river, the Mississippi, which -
means in the Indian tongue the “father of waters.” This
river they crossed with great difficulty, and they pushed on
west—ever west. After nearly a year more of travel, even
De Soto became. discouraged. The expedition turned and
sought the sea. The Mississippi was again reached, where
De Soto became ill and died. Then, a panic seized his fol-
lowers; they feared that, now that their leader, whom the
Indians supposed to be immortal, was gone, they would be
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attacked and killed. Therefore they determined to conceal
the death of De Soto from the Indians.

This was no small task, as the Indians were skilled in all
kinds of woodcraft. They would be able to detect the slight-
est disturbance in leaf or twig, and a grave would quickly be
discovered, no matter how skilfully concealed. One night a
boat pushed out silently from the shore. When the deep
water of the river was reached, the body of the intrepid
leader was lifted over the side of the boat and lowered into
the stream. Quickly it sank in the waters, with only a ripple
to mark its resting-place.

It was a sad end for the brave De Soto, who had left his
ships so hopefully three years before. His misfortunes he
brought upon himself. The Indians were ready to repay
kindness with kindness. They were cruelly and deceitfully
treated, and they were cruel and deceitful in return.

De Soto’s followers, discouraged and hopeless, succeeded
in building a few small vessels. These were launched in the
Mississippi River, and, fifteen months after the death of De
Soto, reached Mexico. Out of the six hundred who set out
from Tampa Bay, nearly half perished in this disastrous
journey.

Describe the interest that Spaniards felt in the new countries.

Tell the story of De Soto’s journey.

Describe the character of the country through which he passed.
Give an account of the death and burial of De Soto.

Was the desire for wealth sufficient to lead men to cross the ocean?
Do you know of any recent cases where people have been *crazy
to go” into some new country? How did it happen that John Ortiz
was in America? Why were there “mno roads”? What is meant by

“fording a river”? Why did the Indians continually tell the Span-
iards that there were “ rich villages to the west"?
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MOoRE than half a century after the voyages of Columbus an
English boy was born, for whom the capital of North Carolina
is named. His family had been illustrious for many genera-
tions, and, though it had lost much of its possessions, it was
still able to give young Walter Raleigh a fair start in life.

After that, however, all that he accomplished was obtained
by his own hard work. He was a soldier, fighting bravely
in the civil wars in France. He was a sailor, leading in the
overthrow of the famous Spanish Armada. He was an orator,
able to dispute with the great statesmen of his day. He wasa
courtier, the favorite of Queen Elizabeth.

Raleigh was a man of commanding presence. He was six
feet 1n height and remarkably well built. He was accus-
tomed, like the other courtiers of Elizabeth, to set off his
handsome face and striking form by dress of the richest ma-
terial. Silks and velvets, embroidered with gems and gold,
were his usual apparel. He possessed most charming man-
ners and was a model of politeness. One day the queen,
with her attendant courtiers, came to a muddy place in the
road. Seeing that she hesitated to place her dainty slippers
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in the mud, Raleigh immediately “spread his new plush
cloak on the ground, whereon the queen trod gently over,
rewarding him afterward with many suits for his so free and
seasonable tender of so fair a foot-cloth.” ‘
Raleigh, however, was more than a mere idler about
the court. Before he was thirty years of age he began to
show an interest in Ameri-

ca. Eighty years had passed

since the voyages of Cabot

gave England a claim to

the Atlantic coast of Ameri-

ca. Meanwhile, Spain had

conquered Mexico and the

West Indies, and had made

a settlement at Saint Au-

gustine in Florida. France

had explored the coast and

had tried to establish colo-

nies. But England had ap-

parently forgotten all about

the new world. .

The time had come for

WHERE RALEIGH LANDED, a revival of English inter-

est in America. Sir Francis

Drake returned from his voyage around the world and gave
an account of what he had seen of the unknown lands.
Martin Frobisher sought a northwest passage around the
new continent to Asia. Sir Humphrey Gilbert made two
expeditions from England, and tried in vain to make a set-
tlement in Newfoundland. A few of the more thoughtful
as well as the more adventurous Englishmen began to per-
ceive that a new England in America would greatly increase
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the power of the old England across the water. Among
these statesmen was Walter Raleigh, the handsome, popular,
brave courtier of Elizabeth. |

Raleigh was a younger brother of Sir Humphrey Gilbert
and had taken part in his first expedition. Fortunately he
did not accompany his brother in the second, or he might
have lost his life in the same storm in which his brother
perished.

The death of Gilbert and the loss of his entire fortune did
not lessen Raleigh’s desire to build up an English home in
the new world. He took up the work where his brother left
it, and the next year fitted out two ships to explore the coast
of America and choose a suitable place for a colony.

The leaders of this expedition returned and reported that
the Island of Roanoke, off the coast of what was later called
- Carolina, was well adapted for a settlement. There they had
found a fertile soil, a delightful climate, and friendly In-
dians. Queen Elizabeth knighted Raleigh for this expedi-
tion, and directed that the new country be named Virginia,
in honor of herself, the “ Virgin Queen.” '

The next year (1585) Sir Walter sent out his first colony.
What energy and courage were needed by the one hundred
colonists, who left England in a fleet of seven small vessels!
A voyage across the Atlantic did not then contain the terrors
that it had in the time of Columbus, but the thought of a
home in the wilds of an unknown land, thousands of miles
from England, with an ocean between them and 2ll their
friends, must have been disheartening. But they sailed
bravely across the waters, began at once to build their rude
houses, and sent all their vessels back to England.

Troubles arose at once. The friendly Indians of the year
before began to show themselves hostile. They did not like
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the thought that these newcomers were taking the land that
had been theirs. They were angry, and they had reason to
be, at the way the white men treated them.

Governor Ralph Lane had sent out an exploring party
soon after the colonists arrived. On its return it was found
that a silver cup, which one of the party had carried, was
missing. Instantly they charged the red men with stealing
it. Hastening back, they came to an Indian town from which

‘alll the inhabitants had fled. In retaliation for the loss of
‘the cup the white men burned the whole town, with all the
houses and stores of provisions. This foolish act was fol-
lowed by a long series of injuries, until the red men plotted
to massacre the entire colony.

Lane and his little band discovered the plot and succeeded
in defending themselves. But the constant fear of the In-
dians and the unaccustomed hardships proved too much for -
the colonists. They missed their well-built houses at home,
their wholesome food, and their soft beds. When Sir Fran-
cis Drake sailed into the harbor in June, he was eagerly
besought to take them home. The admiral consented, and
Raleigh’s first colony was abandoned.

Governor Lane carried home with him samples of three
of the products of the new world, which had hitherto been
unknown in England—maize or Indian corn, white potatoes,
and tobacco. Raleigh planted the potatoes on his estate in
Ireland, where the root became popular. It has since been
cultivated by the people of that island so persistently that it
is now everywhere known as the Irish potato.

Lane and Raleigh also introduced into Europe the habit
of smoking. Every one enjoys the story of Raleigh’s ser-
vant, who, carrying his master a mug of ale, saw him for the
first time sending forth whiffs of tobacco-smoke. Overcome
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with fright, the man threw the ale in Raleigh’s face and ran
from the room, calling out that his master was on fire and
would soon be consumed.

Still anxious to extend the English domain, Raleigh sent
out a larger colony the next year, under Captain John White.
When the fleet reached Roanoke Island, it was found that all
the Houses of the previous
settlement had been destroy-
ed by the Indians. Where
the village had been was now
a melon-patch.

Not a very pleasant wel-.

come for these strangers!
New houses were soon built,
however, and the colony at
once settled down to regular
life. But provisions and re-
inforcements were necessary,
and the governor sailed for
England to seek them and to
give a report of the colony.

Governor White was very
sorry to be compelled so early :
to leave the colony. He felt RA;I?:)GK‘:NSGSEII:IVA:::E:?Z??; ox FiRE.
himself responsible for its
welfare, and he was especially anxious because he left behind
him a daughter, Mrs. Dare, and a little granddaughter. This
girl was named Virginia, because she was the first English
child born in the new land. She was but nine days old when
her grandfather sailed out of sight of the colony. Anxiously
did the governor look forward to a quick return from Eng-
land.
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Scrooby. As he grew older he became an earnest upholder
of the beliefs of the small denomination. He was a scholar
and was familiar with those studies which require considera-
ble thought, such as the ancient languages, philosophy, and
theology. He was fitted to be a leader in a religious move-
ment, and, though still young, he was prominent very early
among the exiles in Amsterdam.

Soon the little band removed to Leyden, another city of
Holland. Here these wanderers began to call themselves
Pilgrims, because they did not seem to have any permanent
home. In Leyden, with their beloved pastor, John Robin-
son, they lived for nearly eleven years.

These English people, in the strange Dutch land, of

- course had no easy task to find means of support. But as
weavers, masons, carpenters, hat makers, and tailors, they
were able to make a competent and comfortable living by
hard and continued labor.

After some years, however, they began to question among
themselves if everything was as it should be. They were
English people, and believed in English methods and cus-
toms. Was it not likely that their sons and daughters, grow-
ing up among the Dutch, would learn Dutch ways instead of
English? Perhaps they might even marry among the people
of Holland, and so make it their permanent home.

Consequently their thoughts were turned toward the pos-
sibility of settling in America. There they would be free
from English punishments and also from Dutch customs.
There they could worship God as they thought right and at
the same time carry the Bible to the Indians. Accordingly,
for two or three years, they tried to make arrangements with
the Virginia Company to send them across the ocean. At
last, in 1620, an agreement was reached, and, in the middle
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of summer, the vessel Speedwell sailed from Delft-Haven, the
port of Leyden.

The Speedwell was too small to carry half of the members
of the Leyden church; therefore Elder William Brewster was
sent with the colonists, and Pastor John Robinson remained
in Holland with the majority, who could not then go. The
little vessel sailed to Southampton, England, where it was
joined by the Mayflower, '
with other Separatists
who had remained in
England. The two ves-
sels left Southampton,
but were twice compelled
to return to English har-
bors, because the Speed-
well was leaking. Finally
it was decided to use the
Mayflower alone, and,
early in September, a
little band of one hun-
dred men, women, and
children left the har- THE “IIAYFLOWE:I:; ‘:gU::NTER HARBOR AT
bor of Plymouth, Eng-
land, for their stormy voyage across the Atlantic Ocean.

More than two months passed before land was seen. This
proved to be a part of Cape Cod. The Pilgrims had one of
John Smith’s maps of the New England coast, and therefore
knew where they were. They anchored in the harbor of
Provincetown, and at once thanked God “who had brought
them over the vast and furious ocean and delivered them from
all the perils and miseries thereof, again to set their feet on
the firm and stable earth.”
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While the Mayflower lay in the harbor an agreement was
drawn up and signed by forty-one men. This was the
“ Mayflower Compact,” which pledged the signers to obey the
government which it
established. Then
the voyagers elected
John Carver gover-
nor.

Nearly a month
was spent in explor-
ing the shores of’
Cape Cod Bay, in order to find a suitable spot for the settle-
ment. Finally a party of twelve Pilgrims landed at the spot
marked on Smith’s map as Plymouth. This took place on
December 21st, 1620—a day since celebrated as Forefather’s
Day. The explorers chose Plymouth as the site of the col-
ony, and the Mayflower was brought across into that harbor.

The Virginia colony had commenced its settlement just
at the beginning of a hot and sickly summer; the Plymouth
colonists arrived at the
beginning of a cold and
dreary New England
winter. The Jamestown
settlers lacked provi-
sions during that first
summer; the Plymouth
band had not sufficient
food to keep them alive through that first winter. The
hundred Virginians of the summer of 1607 decreased to about
fifty before autumn; the hundred Pilgrims of the Decem-
ber of 1620 were but about fifty at the beginning of the
next summer. Thus the winter hardships of the New Eng-

IN A PILGRIM’S HOME.

A SPYING INDIAN.
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land colony were as severe as those of the first summer in
Virginia.

Among the deaths that spring was that of Governor Car-

ver. The colonists at once’ elected young William Bradford
as his successor. Year
after year the Plymouth
colony chose him as gov-
ernor, even to the time
of his death. During
the thirty-six years of
~his life in America,
Bradford was governor
thirty-one. To his wise
government was due
much of the success of
the colony, which slowly
but surely grew after the
first winter.

As was the case every-
where among the new
Settlements in America’ CAPTAIN STANDISH RECEIVING THE CHALLENGE,
one of the greatest dan-
gers lay in the hostility of the Indians. Fortunately for
the Pilgrims, but few red men lived in the neighborhood of
Plymouth when the colony was founded. This was one of
the main reasons for the years of peace with the Indians
that followed the landing of the colonists. Besides, the
Pilgrims treated the Indians in a kindly spirit and yet
showed a firm determination to protect themselves.

Early in the spring of 1621 an Indian named Samoset vis-
ited the Plymouth colony; he was received with kindness
and sent away with a few presents. Soon he returned with
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Squanto, another Indian, who could speak some English, as
he had been captured and taken to England years before by
a party exploring the New England coast. Squanto was of
considerable assistance to the colony, teaching them how to
plant the Indian corn and also giving information concern-
ing the neighboring Indian tribes.

The next autumn a tribe of Indians, called the Narragan-
setts, thought that they would frighten the Pilgrims; so they
sent them a “bundle of arrows tied about with a great snake
skin.” The colonists, though desiring peace, were not cow-
ardly; they immediately returned the skin filled with bullets.
Then they began to strengthen their fort and to place them-
selves in readiness. But the Indians did not dare make an
attack, and for more than fifty years, until King Philip’s
War, Plymouth colony was free from Indian wars.

Thus the Pilgrims found their permanent home. Under
the wise government of William Bradford, guided by the
true counsels of Elder Brewster, and led in military affairs
by the brave Miles Standish, Plymouth colony quietly and
steadily grew. After seventy years of separate existence,
New Plymouth was joined to the Province of Massachusetts
Bay, and to-day it is a part of the State of Massachusetts.

State what the Separatists desired.

Give an account of the arrest of the passengers.

Tell the story of William Bradford: as a young man; in his Leyden
home; on the ocean; at Plymouth.

Describe the Mayflower Compact.
Tell how Squanto aided the Pilgrims; how the Indians threatened

. them.

Do we have religious freedom to-day? Are any religiots meetings
forbidden now in our country? How did the Pilgrims go from Scrooby
to Amsterdam? How did they go from Amsterdam to Leyden? The
Pilgrims were afraid that they would become like the Dutch; was this
probable? Do immigrants to the United States grow to be like the
rest of us?




1588-1649

THE Separatists, a few of whom came to Plymouth, were
not the only English people who did not accept all the doc-
trines of the Church of England. A much ‘larger number,
called Puritans, still went to church with the rest of the Eng-
lish people. These were not at first persecuted, but, as they
became more numerous and important, trouble arose between
them and the king. When this quarrel began some of the
leaders proposed to establish a colony for the Puritans, like
the Pilgrim settlement at Plymouth.

A fishing-hamlet had been started at Cape Ann (1623)
a few years after the landing of the Pilgrims, with Roger
Conant in charge. The cape was bleak and rocky and not
easily cultivated, and the settlement wasa failure. One day,
however, when Conant was paddling his canoe along the
shore, he found a fertile piece of land stretching out into the sea
between two little rivers. He thought that this peninsula,
which the Indians called Naumkeag, would be a good place
for a_settlement, and in the spring (1626) he and fourteen
companions moved over from Cape Ann and established
themselves at Naumkeag.
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Conant wrote for aid to a Puritan leader in Dorchester, Eng-
land, named John White; he needed more colonists and sup-
plies. Two years later John Endicott was sent over to Naum-
keag with a hundred settlers, having a grant of all the land
between Plymouth and New Hampshire. This latter colony

had been settled at
Portsmouth and Dover
the year that Cape Ann
was first used as a fish-
ing-station (1623).
Governor Endicott
brought over from
England some pear-
trees, and one of them
is still living and blos-
soming in the town of
Danvers. What along
life for a pear-tree
—not far from three
centuries! What
changes that tree has
witnessed! If it could
think and talk, what a
GOVERNOR ENDICOTT'S PEAR-TREE—ONE THING IT ta]e it Cou]d tell! A
sAW, pretty story is told
about a young couple,
who, walking home one Sunday after church service, stopped
under the pear-tree. The young man picked from the tree a
double stem having two blossoms on it. He asked the young
lady if she would take one and let him keep the other. She
consented and soon after became his wife. He was a min-
ute-man and went to the battle of Lexington.
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The next year, Endicott was rejoiced by the arrival of six
vessels and four hundred colonists at Naumkeag, or Salem,
as it was from this time called. A part of the newcomers
remained at Salem, while others built a town on the penin-
sula of Charlestown. The next spring (1630) four more ves-
sels sailed into Salem harbor, and before the year was over
thirteen others arrived, bringing in all, that year, nearly fif-
teen hundred colonists. Some remained at Salem, others
went to Charlestown, and others still built new villages, most
of them near the present city of Boston.

The new governor, John Winthrop, came out in the
spring of 1630. He was a little more than forty years old,
and was an earnest, sincere Puritan. For several years he
had felt certain that trouble was coming in England, and he
was willing to leave home and friends behind him, in order
to found a place of refuge for the Puritans. For the next
nineteen years, until his death, he was the most important
leader in the colony of Massachusetts Bay.

Winthrop left his family in England when he sailed for
the new colony, and soon after his arrival he wrote one of his
loving letters to his wife in the mother-country. “ Blessed
be the Lord, our good God and merciful Father, that yet hath
preserved me in life and health. We had a long and trou-
blesome passage, but the Lord made it safe and easy to us;
and though we have met with many and great troubles, yet
He hath pleased to uphold us.”

We can learn from Winthrop's letters something of the
discomforts which the settlers suffered. A week later he
wrote to his wife Margaret: “Let us join in praising our
merciful God that He upholds our hearts in all our troubles.
And howsoever our fare be but coarse, in respect of what we
formerly had (peas, puddings, and fish being our ordinary

5
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diet), yet He makes it sweet and wholesome to us. There-
fore be not discouraged, my dear wife, for I see no cause to
repent of our coming hither, and thou seest that God can
bring safe hither even the tenderest women and the young-
est children.”

Winthrop proposed that his family should come to New
England the next summer, and he sent many directions as

MRS. WINTHROP PREPARING TO COME TO AMERICA.

to what they should bring. “Remember to come well fur-
nished with linen, woollen, some more bedding, brass, and
pewter. Be sure to be warm clothed and to have store of
fresh provisions, meal, eggs, butter, oatmeal, peas, and
fruits. Thou must be sure to bring no more company than
so many as shall have full provision for a year and a half,
for though the earth here be very fertile, yet there must be
time and means to raise it; if we have corn enough we may
live plentifully.”
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Before Mrs. Winthrop arrived in the colony, the governor
had built a new town and made it the capital. Shawmut, or
Trimountain, as the English at first called it, lay almost
entirely surrounded by water, across which were the settle-
ments of Charlestown, Newtown, Roxbury, and Dorchester.
Here lived one man, William Blackstone by name, near a
spring of clear, cold water. By his advice Winthrop chose
this peninsula to be his home, and named it Boston, in honor
of the old town of Boston on the eastern shore of England,
from which many of the settlers had come.

The colony was soon well established, and during the next

‘twenty years many thousand Puritans left England to try a
life in a new world. Though the civil war in England for a
time put the Puritans at the head of the government, the
young king, Charles II., was placed upon.the throne thirty
years after the arrival of Winthrop in Boston.

From thistime on, the king opposed the Puritans in every
way, especially those of Massachusetts. The dislike of the
king for the colony and of the colony for the king continued
until Massachusetts Bay joined with the other colonies in an
opposition to the mother-country, which resulted in their in-
dependence and gave us the United States of America.

Give an account of the Puritans in England.

Tell the story of Roger Conant; of Governor Endicott; of the set-
tlers of 1630; of the founding of Boston.

Describe Winthrop’s letters.

The Puritans wished to make the church better; do you see any-
thing in their name that shows this? The reason is given why the
settlement at Cape Ann was a failure; what does this show to be most
necessary in a new colony? Winthrop calls his food “ coarse”; was it
not good? Why did Winthrop ask his wife to bring “ fresh provisions”?
Why was Boston first called Trimountain?



ROGER WILLIAMS DRIVEN OUT

1599-1683 1586-1647

ROGER WILLIAMS, a young minister from England, ar-
rived at Boston a few months after Winthrop. He was of a
good family and was born in London; his father was James
Williams, a merchant tailor, and his mother’s name was
Alice. Young Williams was-a minister of the church at Sa-
lem for a little while, and then went to Plymouth, where he
preached for more than two years. After this he returned to
Salem, and was minister there for about two years and a half.
During this time the government of Massachusetts Bay be-
came bitterly opposed to Williams because of certain opinions
which he held and preached.

Williams thought that the Massachusetts people ought to

- buy their lands from the Indians. He said that the king’s
gift was not enough, because the king did not own the land.
He also taught that the government should punish for civil
offences only. That is, Williams held that in religious
matters every one ought to be permitted to think and decide
for himself.

He was brought before the court, but he would not
change. The court then passed a sentence of banishment,




WILLIAMS AND HOOKER. 69

ordering him to “depart out of this jurisdiction.” In Janu-
ary, 1636, Williams left Salem, after bidding his wife and
children good-by, and, with a staff in his hand and a pack
upon his back, he began a long and perilous journey through
the deep snows of the wilderness. Which way he went is
not known, but we may suppose that on the first day, go-
ing around Boston on its west-

ern side, he reached Natick,

where he found friendly In-

dians who gave him a rest-

ing-place in their wigwam

over night.

Perhaps on the next day
he made a short journey to
Ponkapoag, in the present
town of Canton, where some
friendly Indians resided.

Think of him as he pushed

on through the snow to a

place near Taunton, hoPing FIRST CHURCH AT SALEM WHERE WILLIAMS
there to find lodgings with PREACHED (STILL STANDING).
other Indians whom he knew.

But the snows were deep and the weather cold, the way was
long, and night overtook him in the wilderness.

It may be that, finding a hollow tree, blown over by the
wind, he crawled into it and during the night got such
snatches of sleep as would come to him in his narrow bed-
room upon so hard a bed. Finally, reaching the friendly
Indians near Taunton, he may have spent a night with them,
and then, on the day following, have gone on to his old friend,
Massasoit, at Sowams, which is now the town of Warren, in
Rhode Island.
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Here Williams remained for three months or more, mak-
ing his home with Massasoit, but visiting the neighboring
Indians from place to place. When the springtime came on
some of his friends joined him, and Williams looked about for
the best place to make a settlement. In a small canoe he

crossed the Seekonk River
with five companions. At
Slate Rock, which is on
the east side of the city of
Providence, he was met
by friendly Indians, who
greeted him with the wel-
come, “What cheer, Ne-
top, what cheer!” - This
means, “ How do you do,
good friend, how do you
do?”

Williams paddled
around the point of land
and made a settlement
near a beautiful spring of

- water. Here was begun

ROGER WILLIAMS MEETING FRIENDLY INDIANS -

AT SLATE ROCK. a new settlement, a new

town, a new colony, and

one of the thirteen original United States. Others soon

joined him, and a government was established by a written

agreement, which read as follows: “We, whose names are

here underwritten, do promise to subject ourselves to all

such orders or agreements as shall be made for the public

good of the body, in an orderly way, by the major consent

of the present inhabitants and such others whom they shall
admit unto the same—only in civil things.”
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“Only in civil things” means that the public laws shall
not interfere with a man’s religious belief. Here, firstin the
whole world, was established a government upon thke princi-
ple of full religious liberty. From that time till the present,
Rhode Island has been noted for religious freedom. Roger
Williams, therefore, deserves the title of “the great apostle
of religious freedom.” '

Two years after Roger Williams came to Boston, Thomas
Hooker, another minister, arrived. Within six weeks after
he had landed he was chosen pastor of the church at New-
town, now Cambridge. Hooker was a man of great ability and
a very attractive preacher. Heatonce took high rank among
the learned men of Massachusetts, interesting himself in all
the important political and religious movements of the colony.
. Hooker did not agree with Winthrop. He believed that
all the people ought to take part in the government, while
Winthrop thought that a large part of them were unfit to
govern. Winthrop’s idea favored an aristocracy, a govern-
ment by a few, the better people; Hooker thought the gov-
ernment should be a democracy, a government by all the
people.

Hooker did not stop to quarrel with Winthrop, but, a few
months after Williams had gone to Providence (1636), he,
with a great company, comprising a large part of the inhabi-
tants of the three towns, Cambridge, Dorchester, and Water-
town, left the Bay Colony and set out on a long and difficult
journey to the Connecticut River.

What a journey that was from Boston to Hartford!
Through a trackless wilderness, across streams, they trav-
eled, driving their cattle before them and living during the
whole journey as best they could upon the milk of their cows
and whatever they could find upon the way.
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Three years later the Connecticut settlers adopted a
“Body of Fundamental Laws,” doubtless drawn up by
Hooker. -

The adoption of this document, and the founding of their

HOOKER’S EXPEDITION TO CONNECTICUT.

government upon it, is the first case in the history of the
world where a written constitution, which established and put
in operation a new government, was framed and adopted by
the people. It gave equal rights to all citizens, and prom-
ised freedom and protection to all under the laws which the
people should adopt.

Roger Williams and Thomas Hooker must be considered
among the foremost men of their age. They laid the real
foundations of American liberty.

Four of the six States afterward forming New England
were now settled. After a time Plymouth was united to
the Bay Colony, and the two thus brought together made the
colony of Massachusetts. Providence Colony united with
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Newport Colony, and received a charter from Charles II.
Hartford, Windsor, and Wethersfield for a time formed the
Connecticut River Colony, while settlements about New
Haven made the New Haven Colony. At a later date these
two colonies were united and became the Colony of Con-
necticut.

Give an account of Williams’ early life.

State the trouble between Massachusetts and Williams.
Describe his possible wanderings.

Give an account of the founding of Providence.
Explain what is meant by “ religious freedom.”

State why Hooker left Massachusetts Bay.

Describe the journey and its results.

‘Was Williams right in his ideas about the lands? Was he right in
his belief in religious freedom? How did Williams know the Indians
at Taunton? Williams once wrote that he was “ tossed for fourteen
weeks, not knowing what bed or bread did mean”; where do you sup-
pose he spent most of that time? Why was the city which Williams
founded called Providence? What do you understand by a “ trackless
wilderness”? What were the four New England States? How many
New England colonies were there at first?

7
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1602-1682

THE same year that Pastor Robinson and the Pilgrims
moved from one city in Holland to another (1609), the Dutch
East India Company sent out Henry Hudson, an English-
man, in a vessel called the Half-Moon, to search for a nearer
passage to Asia. Hudson sailed from Holland in the month
of April, and reached the cold waters north of Russia so early
in the season that masses of ice and broken icebergs prevented
his farther advance.

He then decided to seek a western passage, as he could not
go east, and he turned his vessel toward Greenland. He
passed along Newfoundland, and continued southward along
the coast of America, seeking for some strait or passage into
the land which might lead through to the Pacific Ocean. At
last he reached a point opposite the mouth of Chesapeake Bay.
Not caring to visit the two-year-old colony at Jamestown,
Hudson sailed north again, made the first visit to Delaware
Bay, and cast anchor in New York Harbor.

For the first time Europeans viewed the spot where now
stands Greater New York, one of the largest cities in the
world. For the first time a vessel sailed up the river past the
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Palisades and the Highlands, almost to the head of navigation
where the city of Albany now is situated. For the first time
the Indians on the banks of this river looked upon a vessel
bearing sails, and, filled with curiosity, they flocked to the
Half-Moon in great numbers.

To this river Hudson gave his own name. Two months
earlier Samuel de Champlain had gone south from Quebec, and

HUDSON SAILING UP THE RIVER,

named for himself the great lake separating New York
from Vermont. So these two men, one in the employ of the
Dutch and the other sent out by France, began the explora-
tion of the great region which is now the State of New York.
Hudson entered from the south, and Champlain from
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the north. They came within a hundred miles of each
other.

Hudson returned to Holland and reported the results of
his voyage. He had found neither the northeast nor the
northwest passage to India, but he had discovered the Hudson
River. He told the Dutch people about the fine harbor and
the fertile country; he stated that the Indians were kindly,
and that the woods were filled with fur-bearing animals; and
he described the grandeur and beauty of the scenery.

Because of the voyage of Hudson in the Half-Moon, the
Dutch claimed the entire territory between the Connecti-
cut and the Delaware rivers. To this country they gave
the name of New Netherland. Forts and trading-posts
were built (1614), one on the island of Manhattan, another
on the Hudson River near Albany, and a third on the Dela-
ware River. Three years after the Pilgrims sailed for Amer-
ica, fifty families arrived in the Dutch colony (1623), the
larger part of whom settled at New Amsterdam and the rest
at Fort Orange or Albany.

A little later the governor, Peter Minuit, bought the en-
tire island of Manhattan from the Indians for the small sum
of twenty-four dollars.

The Dutch did not always use the best judgment in the
choice of the governors who were sent over to take charge of
the colony. Disputes arose continually between the gover-
nors and the great land-owners, or “ patroons.” The Indians
were often harshly treated, and they in turn murdered the
Dutch. Yet, little by little, the colony grew, until finally a
governor arrived who succeeded in placing it on a firm footing.

Peter Stuyvesant was forty-five years of age when he was
given the charge of New Netherland. While a young man
he had entered the military service of Holland and had
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served loyally and faithfully, losing a leg in an attack upon a
Portuguese fort. He was a proud man, with an overbearing
temper which could bear no opposition. He believed that a
governor should have absolute power, as is shown by his an-
swer to citizens who brought complaints against the former
governor. He haughtily

said: “It is treason to

petition against one’s

magistrates, whether

there be cause or not.”

In spite of his temper
and his belief in his own
absolute power, Peter
Stuyvesant proved him-
self well able to manage
the affairs of the colony.

The greatest danger to

be feared was from the

Indians. Stuyvesant for-

bade the sale of liquor or I
firearms to the red men, STUYVESANT AND THE PETITIONERS,
and carefully considered

their welfare in all his dealings with them. He succeeded
in making the Indians his friends, and perhaps thereby
saved his colony from destruction.

He next turned his attention to promoting the well-being
of the colonists. He established a system of schools; he built
a market and began a series of annual cattle-fairs; he advised
the building of better houses and taverns, and made New
Amsterdam almost a model town. He enforced a careful
observance of the Sabbath, but yielded religious tolerance
to all persons.

Y
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As a result of his wise direction we read that: “The
colony increased; children swarmed in every village;
new modes of activity were devised; lumber was shipped
to France; the whale pursued off the coast; the vine, the
mulberry, planted; flocks of sheep as well as of cattle were
multiplied.

“‘This happily situated province,’ said its inhabitants,
‘may become the granary of our Fatherland; should our
Netherlands be wasted by grievous wars, it will offer our
countrymen a safe retreat; by God's blessing we shall in a
few years become a mighty people.’”

In the midst of its prosperity the colony of New Nether-
land continually quarreled with its neighbors. West and
south of the Delaware River lay the little settlement of New
Sweden. Queen Christina of Sweden had sent out a colony
under the lead of the Dutchman, Peter Minuit (1638). Min-
uit bought land of the Indians on the west bank of the Dela-
ware River and built Fort Christiana, where the city of Wil-
mington now stands.

The Dutch were angry at the coming of the Swedes, but
they were too weak at the time to oppose them in any way
except by words. After the arrival of Stuyvesant as gover-
nor, however, the Dutch Became much stronger and grew to
despise the little Swedish colony. Finally Stuyvesant built
Fort Casimir, on the western bank of the Delaware, within
five miles of Fort Christiana, and within the territory which
the Swedes had bought from the Indians.

The quarrel now became something more than words.
The Swedes made an attack upon Fort Casimir and captured
it. The next year Stuyvesant sailed from New Amsterdam,
with six vessels and seven hundred men, to punish the rash
people of New Sweden. He not only recaptured Fort Casi-
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mir, but he also took Fort Christiana, and New Swedon
ceased to exist as a separate colony.

New Netherland had now become apparently a well-
established colony. It claimed all the territory of the pres-
ent States of New York, New Jersey, and Delaware, and
also the western bank of the Delaware River, in Pennsyl-
vania. Suddenly the power of Stuyvesant and the Dutch

THE ENGLISH FLEET APPEARING AT NEW AMSTERDAM.

came to an end. One day an English fleet quietly sailed into
New Amsterdam Harbor.

England and Holland were at peace with each other, but
the English commander of the fleet, Colonel Nichols, sent a
letter to Fort Manhattan, requiring Stuyvesant immediately
to yield the fort and turn over the government to the Eng-
lish. He announced that Charles II., King of England,
claimed all the east coast of America because of Cabot’s dis-
covery, more than a hundred and fifty years before.

Nichols added that King Charles had given the territory
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between the Connecticut and Maryland to his brother James,
the Duke of York, who had sent this fleet to take possession
of the country.

From the moment that the English vessels were first seen,
Stuyvesant began preparations for defence. He ordered all
the able-bodied men to enrol as soldiers or to work upon the
fortifications. New guns were mounted and the shores pa-
trolled. But this effort came too late. The people saw that
they could not successfully resist the English, and they en-
tered into the work half-heartedly. Besides, many English
people had settled among the Dutch, and these were ready to
welcome an English government.

A second letter reached Stuyvesant and his council. This
offered very favorable terms. It stated that only a change
in flag and governor would be required. The council ad-
vised that the letter be made public and the people permitted
to decide what they would do. At this Stuyvesant became
very angry, declaring that the people had nothing to do with
it. He was the governor and he would not surrender. He
even tore the letter into small pieces, to prevent its being
read to the people.

The council put the parts together again, made a fresh
copy of the letter, and published it. The people were so
strongly in favor of yielding that six commissioners were
sent to treat with Colonel Nichols. Terms of surrender were
written and Stuyvesant was compelled to sign them.

Thus, without bloodshed and without even serious disturb-
ance, New Netherland was lost to Holland, and New York
became an English colony (1660). The Duke of York gave
New Jersey to two of his friends, and afterward sold Dela-
ware to William Penn. In 1776 these three colonies entered
the Union as three States.
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The Dutch people continued to live in New York and did
not seem to realize the change in government. Stuyvesant
himself retired to his farm, or ‘bowerie,” of six hundred acres.
His house was near the present corner of Third Avenue and
Twelfth Street, and his farm gave the name to one of New
York’s famous streets. His garden was noted throughout
the city, and a pear-tree, which he had brought over from
Europe, continued to thrive for two hundred years. This
pear-tree, protected by an iron railing and often visited as
an historical relic, stood until it was blown down thirty years
ago. ‘

Stuyvesant spent the rest of his life on this farm, and
died at the ripe age of eighty.

Describe Hudson’s voyage: on the ocean; on the river; home
again.

Give an account of Champlain.

Tell the story of the settlement of New Amsterdam; of its poor
governors and its troubles.

Give an account of Stuyvesant: as a soldier; as a governor..

Tell the story of the capture of New Sweden; of the capture of
New Netherland.

Has a northwest passage yet been found? Do you know of any
modern plans for a shorter western water-passage from Europe to
Asia? What was the principal reason for colonizing New Netherland?
‘Were Stuyvesant and Hooker much alike? Had Sweden any right to
make a colony? Would Roger Williams have said that she had a
right? Which had the better claim to the land between Connecticut
and Maryland, Holland or England? How many Colonies have we
now read about? How many of the original thirteen States?



A FEW years before Walter Raleigh sent out his colonies
to Roanoke Island, George Calvert was born in Yorkshire,
England. When barely seventeen years of age he was grad-
uated from the University of Oxford. After a few years
spent in travel he became the private secretary of Sir Robert
Cecil, the favorite statesman of Queen Elizabeth. When
James I. was king of England, Calvert was made a member
of his private council, was knighted, and later was ap-
pointed to one of the highest offices in the English govern-
ment.

Sir George Calvert here showed himself to be exact and
careful in all his work. In his high office he naturally made
many enemies, but even they always acknowledged his hon-
esty and purity. He was a most sincere lover of his country,
but after serving it faithfully for six years he resigned and
asked permission from the king to retire from public life.
He did this because he had become a Roman Catholic and
could no longer uphold the Church of England. The king
granted his request and honored his faithful servant by mak-
ing him Baron of Baltimore, in Ireland.
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The Pilgrims had fled to Holland and then to Plymouth
because they would not obey the rules of the Church of Eng-
land. The Puritans had established Massachusetts Bay as
a place of refuge from religious persecution. At the same
time the Roman Catholics in England were also harshly
treated, but they had no place to which they might go. Lord
Baltimore had for years been interested in the new colonies
in America, and now that he had more leisure he wished that
he might make a home for
Catholics also.

King James and his son,

King Charles, still remained

friendly to Lord Baltimore,

even though he had changed

his'church. Therefore when

he purchased a part of the

island of Newfoundland,

called Avalon, he easily ob-

tained permission from King

Charles to colonize it. He

sent out a COlonY the Y€ar wHERE BALTIMORE STARTED HIS COLONY.
after Plymouth was settled,

and buildings were erected and the land cultivated. A few
years later he himself visited Avalon, but the climate was
so cold that he was greatly discouraged. He gave up the
colony and sailed for Virginia.

Baltimore was a Catholic, and the Virginians did not like
Catholics. Therefore life in Jamestown was unpleasant for
him, and he returned to England. He was still anxious to
form a colony, and persuaded King Charles to give him land
on both sides of Chesapeake Bay, north of the Potomac River.
Before the deed was signed Baltimore died, and his son, Cecil
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Calvert, became Lord Baltimore and received the grant in his
father’s stead.

This was one of the largest free gifts of land ever made
to any one man. The grant included the present State of
Maryland and even much more territory. And what do you
think the king required of Baltimore and his children in pay-
ment for this land? All he asked was that they would give
to him at Windsor Castle every year two Indian arrows.

Not .a very high rent, it is true; but this yearly present
showed that the king still claimed a higher power over the
new province than the proprietor, Lord Baltimore.

Cecil Calvert at once began preparations to send over a
colony. He could not go himself, and therefore put his
brother Leonard in command. Two vessels—one, the A7k,
of large size, and the other, the Dove, much smaller—sailed
in November, with about three hundred colonists. The col-
ony was to be a refuge for persecuted Catholics, but many of
the voyagers were Protestants, and Calvert showed his sense
of justice by ordering that no one should trouble another on
account of the way in which he tried to worship God.

For four months the two vessels continued on their course
to the new province of Maryland, so named in honor of the
queen of England, Henrietta Maria. The little company
landed at an island in the Potomac River and set up a cross,
claiming the country for Christ and for England. Then the
Dove was sent farther up the river to seek for a spot for a vil-
lage. The Potomac Indians were astonished when they saw
the little vessel, and exclaimed that they would like to see
the tree from which that great canoe was hollowed out; for
they knew nothing of fastening different pieces of timber
together.

T.eonard Calvert decided not to settle so far from the
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ocean. He was not sure what the Indian chieftain had
meant in his mysterious answer to his question. Calvert had
asked him: “Shall we stay here or shall we go back?” The
chief had replied: “You may do as you think best.” The
governor, accordingly, floated down the Potomac and finally
built a village at St. Mary’s (1634), two years before Roger

A MARYLAND CAVALIER PROTECTING A PURITAN FROM ABUSE.

Williams fled from Massachusetts Bay and founded Provi-
dence and Rhode Island.

Lord Baltimore’s greatest wish was that the colony should
be successful and should furnish a safe retreat for Catholics.
He had no dislike for any who might not agree with his own
religious views. He was a broad-minded man, willing that
Protestants and Catholics alike should join in his settlement.
Therefore, from the very beginning, although there was no
law to that effect, Baltimore secured religious toleration in his
colony. By this is meant that no one was punished or trou-
bled for his religious beliefs.

Thus it was that Maryland was the first colony to allow
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its colonists to worship God as they wished. Rhode Island,
two years later, established by law perfect freedom in all re-
ligious matters; Pennsylvania, founded fifty years afterward,
also granted religious freedom. These three colonies differed
from the others in this respect. Now, the religious liberty of
Lord Baltimore, of Roger Williams, and of William Penn,
has become the law in each of the forty-five States of our
Union.

Maryland was frequently in difficulties with the neighbor-
ing colonies, but most of the quarrels were quietly settled.
The boundary line with Pennsylvania caused much trouble,
but the two colonies finally accepted the line laid out by two
surveyors, Mason and Dixon. This boundary between Penn-
sylvania and Matryland has been called Mason and Dixon'’s
line even to the present time. Maryland remained in the
possession of the Baltimores most of the time, until, with the
other colonies, it became independent in 1776.

Give an account of the life of George Calvert until he became Lord
Baltimore. .

Tell the story of the Avalon colony.

Give accounts of the grant of Maryland; of the voyage of Leonard
Calvert; of the settlement.

Explain the “ religious toleration” of Maryland.

Newfoundland is not farther north than England; why did its cold
discourage Calvert? Was the grant of Maryland pleasing to Virginia?
For what reasons? Why did Leonard Calvert decide to settle near the
coast? Do you think that the Indian chieftain wanted Calvert to stay?
Name the colonies that you have already studied, in the order in which
they were settled, without giving dates.




1644-1718

FORTY years after the Scrooby band of Separatists fled
from England to escape persecution, George Fox began to
preach new religious doctrines, that brought to him and his
followers even more severe persecution. Like the Separa-
tists, Fox demanded the right to worship God as seemed to
him best. He even asked for a simpler form of worship than
the Pilgrims had sought. He would give to everybody equal
rights, and he claimed that God only was his superior.

The company of earnest believers who followed the
teaching of George Fox called themselves “ Friends.” Their
peculiar religious beliefs brought them into constant trouble.
They were nicknamed Quakers, and soon were commonly
known by that name.

They were punished for refusing to show reverence to the
king by removing their hats in his presence. They were
persecuted because they preached their doctrines whenever
they found an opportunity. They were whipped and im-
prisoned; they were confined in filthy dungeons; they were
fined and sold as servants.
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The Quakers were punished as severely in the colonies as
in England itself. Even those people who had left England
because of religious persecution forgot the Golden Rule, and.
treated the Quakers worse, if anything, than they themselves
had been treated.

Massachusetts and Connecticut began by banishing the
Quakers and ordering them not to return. When they did
come back and continue to preach, they were punished terri-
bly, and finally some of them were put to death. After this,
persecution became less severe, the people began to see more
of .good and less of harm in the Quaker ideas than they had
supposed, and in time all opposition to them disappeared.

One of the most important followers of George Fox, and
one who did more for the despised Quakers than any one else
could have done, was William Penn. This famous man was
born just before Fox announced the new doctrines. While
a student at Oxford University, Penn was led by a Quaker
preacher so far to accept the belief of the Friends that he
was expelled from college. His father, a distinguished naval
officer, was extremely angry with his son and refused to help
him in any way. After a time, however, young William ob-
tained his father’s permission to travel and study, and he
spent a few years abroad.

One day, while traveling in Ireland, Penn learned that
his old Oxford friend, the Quaker preacher, Thomas Loe,
was to speak in the neighborhood. Penn determined to hear
him again, and the sermon so moved him that he decided to
join the despised and persecuted band. When it began to be
reported in the high society in which the Penn family was
prominent that “ William Penn was a Quaker again or some
very melancholy thing,” his father refused to have anything
more to do with him, Time and again this sincere Quaker
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was fined and imprisoned, but all the opposition only in-
creased his enthusiasm.

After his father’s death, Penn received his property. He
now became interested in America, as he thought that in that
new world, across the ocean, it might be possible to establish
a home for the persecuted Friends. In spite of the unpopu-
larity of his religious belief, Penn had many powerful friends,
among whom was the
king’s brother, James,
the Duke of York.

It happened that Penn
found himself one of the
owners of that part of
New Jersey which was
called West Jersey. His
influence here became
very great, but not so
great as if he had been
the sole owner. He be-
gan to think about that
rich and fertile territory
which lay across the Delaware River. His father had per-
formed many services for the king of England, who, in con-
sequence, owed him sixteen thousand pounds. Penn feared
that this debt might never be paid, and he accordingly pro-
posed to King Charles to give him land across the Delaware
in place of the money due him.

“ After many waitings, watchings, solicitings, and dis-
putes in council,” wrote Penn, “this day my country was
confirmed to me under the great seal of England.”

Penn had great hopes for the future of his new province.
He wrote again: “God will bless and make it the seed of a

PENN AS A COURTIER BEFORE KING CHARLES.
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nation. I shall have a tender care of the government, that
it will be well laid at first.”

He at once sent out a company of emigrants, and with
them instructions as to the founding of a city. He was anx-
ious to have the capital of his province a more beautiful and
healthy town than the crowded cities of Europe he knew so
well.. " He directed that a site for the city should be chosen

P on the Delaware at some
) point where “it is most
navigable, high, dry, and
healthy; that is, where
most ships can best ride,
of deepest draught of
water, if possible, to load
or unload at the bank or
key-side without boating
or lightening of it.” Here
he planned a large and
pleasant city, as he hoped,
for all future time.

Penn was a simple

A PENNSYLVANIA MANOR HOUSE, Q uaker and wished to )

have nothing done that

might make him proud or seem to be proud. He suggested

that the name of New Wales be given to the province, as it

was hilly like Wales. But the king's secretary, “although
a Welshman,” refused to accept that name.

Penn next proposed Sylvania, or the forest country, and
the secretary prefixed the syllable Penn to it. Penn wrote:
“Though I much opposed it and went to the king to have it
struck out and altered, he said it was past and would take it
on him.” The name Pennsylvania was thus given to the col-

RO S e
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ony in honor of the admiral, Penn’s father. Penn had his
own way, however, in naming the new city. He called it
Philadelphia, or City of Brotherly Love.

The next year Penn, with a company of a hundred set-
tlers, sailed from England. The voyage was long and
gloomy, nearly one-third of the passengers dying before the
Delaware was reached. Penn landed in Newcastle in Octo-
ber and was joyfully welcomed, not only by the Quakers who
had arrived before him, but also by the Swedes, the Dutch,
and the earlier English colonists. From Newcastle Penn
proceeded slowly up the Delaware River to the spot which
had been chosen for the new city.

In a few months, houses began to appear and streets to be
laid out in Philadelphia (1683). Penn had purchased the
ground from the Swedes and was delighted with the spot.
He said that the situation was “not surpassed by one among
all the many places I have seen in the world.” This was to
be the city of brotherly love indeed, “the city of refuge, the
mansion of freedom, the home of humanity.”

Penn’s love for his fellow-men was not limited to his
countrymen mnor to European white men. One of his
first steps was to bring about a meeting with the Indians,
in which a treaty of friendship could be arranged. A large
elm-tree, at Shackamaxon, not far from the centre of the
new city, was chosen as the place for the interview. Here
Penn made a speech which won the friendship of the red
men. .

Penn told them: “I will not call you children, for parents
sometimes chide their children too severely; nor brothers
only, for brothers differ. We are the same as if one man’s
body were to be divided into two parts; we are all one flesh -
and blood.” The Indians replied: “We will live in love
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with William Penn and his children as long as the moon and
the sun shall endure.”

Thus was established the province of Pennsylvania, the

twelith of the thirteen English colonies. = King Charles had

given a tract of land

south of Virginia to eight

of his friends. This was

called Carolina, and later

was divided and became

North Carolina and South

Carolina. Fifty years

~ after Penn had landed at

Newcastle, James Ogle-

thorpe established the

thirteenth colony (1733),

Georgia, the youngest of

the company, but now

« the “Empire State of the

PENN’S TALK WITH THE INDIANS, South.” The thirteen

colonies, though engaged

now and then in struggles with their governors, frequently

in conflict with the red men, and at times at war with their

French and Spanish neighbors, nevertheless steadily grew and

developed until they were ready to be a nation by themselves.

Tell the story of George Fox and the Quakers.

Give an account of how William Penn became a Quaker.

Describe the grant of Pennsylvania; the founding of Philadelphia;
the treatment of the Indians.

What religious bodies were persecuted in England? What colonies
were founded as refuges for persecuted people? Are any of these
peoble persecuted in our country to-day? Why could Penn give great
aid to the Quakers? Was Penn’s choice of a capital for his colony
wise? Name the thirteen colonies in the order of their settlement.
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CHAPTER XIII
Kin g P hili P
—1676

THE character and condition of the Indian tribes and their
relation to the colonies form an important subject in New
England history. In the earliest times the settlers and
the Indians were at peace with each other. Very naturally
differences sprang up, and after a while Indian wars followed.

The earliest important Indian war was with the Pequots,
about the time that Hooker founded Hartford. The white
settlers were so few in number and were so scattered that
there was great danger that the Indians would overcome them
and blot out their settlements. The Pequots, however, were
finally destroyed, and, soon after, the colonies of Massachu-
setts Bay, Plymouth, Connecticut, and New Haven formed
a league to protect themselves against the Indians. They
called themselves “ The United Colonies of New England.”

Forty years of peace with the Indians followed the de-
struction of the Pequots. This was broken by “King
Philip’s War.”

King Philip, as he was usually called, was the son and
successor of Massasoit, who had been the chief of the Poka-
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nokets or Wampanoags. This was a powerful tribe living in
Plymouth Colony and along the borders of Rhode Island.
Most of Rhode Island was occupied by the Narragansetts.
King Philip and the Pokanokets attempted to induce the
Narragansetts to join them in a war against the white men,
but Roger Williams was able to persuade them not to do so.

This was a great blow to King Philip, and probably saved
New England from being entirely destroyed. As it was,
many towns in Massachusetts, Rhode Island, and Plymouth
were burned by the Indians. The war was brought to an
end by the death of King Philip near his old home, at Mt.
Hope, in Bristol, Rhode Island, just across the bay from Fall
River. After his death the remnants of his army that escaped
started in retreat across the country northward under Chief
Annawan. v '

Annawan and his little army were captured by Benjamin
Church. This was accomplished by a bold strategem, the
account of which is romantic and interesting. Annawan and
his followers, fifty or sixty in number, had gone into camp
for the night at the foot of a great rock in Rehoboth, a few
miles west of Taunton. On one side of their camp was this
perpendicular rock, and on the other sides a great swamp
covered with thick trees and bushes.

Captain Church, with a few men and tWwo or three friendly
Indians, crawled out upon this rock after dark and looked
down upon Annawan’s camp. The rock was fifty or sixty
feet high. There was no way of approach but to climb down
the steep side. Church had an old Indian and his daughter
go down foremost with their baskets.at their backs, so that
Annawan, if he should see them, would not suspect any
harm. In the shadow of these two and their baskets, Church
and his companions crept down also. Fortunately an Indian
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woman was pounding corn in a mortar, the noise of which
prevented their movement being heard. On reaching the
foot of the rock, Church stepped over Annawan’s son and
sprang to the spot where the Indians had stacked their mus-
kets.

The old Indian chief started up and cried out, “ Howoh!
howoh!” This means, “I am taken.” Seeing no way of es-
cape, he threw himself back upon the ground and lay silent
until Captain Church had secured all thearms. Then Church
sent his friendly Indians to those beyond to tell them that
their chieftain, Annawan, was taken, and if they would sur-
render peaceably they should have good quarter, but if they
attempted to escape they would all be slain. The Indians,
thoroughly disheartened, gave up their arms, both guns
and hatchets, which were immediately carried to Captain
Church.

Having posted his guards, Church turned to Annawan
and asked, “ What have you for supper?” The Indian women
now prepared supper for Church and his men. Annawan
asked Church whether he would eat “cow-beef” or “horse-
beef.” The captain told him that “cow-beef” would be more
acceptable. They made their supper, therefore, from *cow-
beef” and dried green corn. The Indians had no salt, but
Captain Church had brought some with him and this seasoned
his meat.

Church and Annawan now laid themselves down, but they
both remained wide awake while the rest of the company
were fast asleep. These two captains—one an Indian, the
other a white man—Ilay upon the ground looking at each
.other perhaps an hour. Captain Church said nothing, be-
cause he could not speak the Indian language, and he thought
Annawan could not speak English. At length the Indian
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arose, threw off his blanket, and walked away from the com-
pany back into the woods. Church moved close to the guns
and rolled himself over next to young Annawan, so that if
the Indian should attempt to shoot him his son would be in
danger.

The moon was now shining brightly, and after a while he
saw Annawan coming toward him with something in his

MARCHING OFF ANNAWAN AS A PRISONER OF WAR.

hands. Annawan fell upon his knees before the captain and
said in English: “Great captain! you have killed Philip and
conquered his country. I believe that I and my company arc
the last that war against the English You have ended the
war, and these things belong to you.’

Opening his pack, he pulled out Ph111p s belt, nine inches
broad, wrought in various figures, flowers, and pictures of
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many birds and beasts made with black and white wampum.

This belt when hung upon Captain Church’s shoulders
reached to his ankles. Annawan then handed him another
belt of wampum, wrought after the same manner, which
Philip was accustomed to wear upon his head. It had two
flags on the hinder part which hung down on his back, and
another small belt with a star upon the end of it which he
used to hang upon his breast. These were all edged with
red hair, which Annawan said came from the Mohawk coun-
try. He then pulled out two horns of glazed powder and a
red cloth blanket.

Annawan told Captain Church that these were Philip’s
royalties, and he thought himself happy in presenting them
to Church, as he was now entitled to them. They spent the
remainder of the night in conversation with each other. An-
nawan gave Captain Church a graphic account of his successes
in former wars.

Whata picture! These two captains—one the conqueror,
the other the vanquished—talking all night; and in the
morning the one with his few men marching the other with
his larger company to Taunton as prisoners of war!

King Philip’s War was ended. It had lasted a little more
than one year, but thirteen villages had been burned to ashes
and others partially destroyed, and more than five hundred
white settlers had been killed.

Though the Indians hated the white men and often mur-
dered them without reason, yet they would show strong and
true friendship to such as had been friendly to them. Hugh
Cole lived in Swansea, near Mount Hope. He had always
been friendly to the Indians and had made King Philip his
friend. Before the war broke out, Philip _'sent word to Cole
that trouble was ahead, but that no harm should come to him

. .
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or his family. A little later Philip sent another messenger,
saying that he could not restrain his young men and Cole
must take care of himself. He went to a place of safety, but
the Indians did not burn his house, and no one of the Coles
was ever molested by the Indians in all that terrible war.

Describe the Pequot War; King Philip’s War.

Tell the story of the capture of Annawan; of his gift to Captain
Church.

Give an account of Hugh Cole.

‘What colonies were not admitted to the “ United Colonies of New
England”? Why could Roger Williams persuade the Narragansetts
not to aid Philip? Why did Annawan yield so easily? Why did
neither Church nor Annawan sleep? What is meant by-“royalties”?
Had the Indians reason for hating the white men?




SAMUEL DE CHAMPLAIN ascended the St. Lawrence early
in the seventeenth century, and was delighted with the great
attractions of the river and the charming scenery of the coun-
try. He built the City of Quebec the year after the settle-
ment of Jamestown, and has therefore been called the “ Foun-
der of New France.” He was anxious to establish a French
empire and the Roman Catholic faith in this new world.

Other French leaders followed Champlain, and in time
Montreal, Detroit, and Fort Mackinaw were built. Many
French priests came to New France and established missions
among the Indians. French fur-traders also madc friendship
with the red men, in order to obtain supplies of furs. These
priests and traders were active in exploring the country, and,
while the English colonists remained near the Atlantic coast,
pushed farther and farther inland.

-~ Father Marquette discovered the upper Mississippi just
before King Philip’s War in New England. He floated down
the great river as far as the mouth of the Arkansas. Father
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Hennepin pushed his canoe up the Mississippi until he saw
the Falls of St. Anthony, at what is now known as Minne-
apolis. The greatest of the French explorers was Cavalier
de la Salle, who gave “o France, by his discoveries, her claim
to the great Mississippi valley. G 4

La Salle’s life was filled with hardships and romantic ad-
ventures. He first went to Canada when he was twenty-three
years of age. He engagec
in the fur-trade and made
many excursions back into
the country among the In-
dian tribes.

Think of this French-
man as, with a few pio-
neers to help him, he built a
vessel of sixty tons on Lake
Erie. In this craft he sailed
from Lake Erie, past Fort
Detroit, up Lake Huron,
by Fort Mackinaw, and
through Lake Michigan.
He built a fort near the site
of the present city of Pe-
oria. ThlS fort he hoped to make a centre around which a
large French colony might grow.

But misfortunes met him on every hand. His vessel was
lost on a voyage eastward to get supplies for the new settle-
ment. La Salle was compelled to return to Canada on foot
to obtain the needed food and ammunition, and found there
that enemies were opposing him at every step. While in
Quebec, Indians destroyed his fort at Peoria.

Not discouraged, but eager as ever, La Salle again started

THE FIRST VESSEL ON THE LAKES.
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for the Mississippi Valley. He built another fort, and, leav-
ing a garrison to defend it, descended the Mississippi River
in canoes. This river, below the Arkansas, had never before
been explored by a European. La Salle continued southward
until he reached the mouth of the river. Here with impos-
ing ceremonies he took possession of the country in the name
of France.

In honor of his king, Louis XIV., La Salle named this
great valley Louisiana. The valley of the St. Lawrence, as
we have seen, also belonged to France, and was called Can-
ada. These two valleys made up the whole region of North
America that was claimed by France, and were together
called New France. '

La Salle and his party returned northward, paddling up
the river and then crossing ihe country to Canada. Now La
Salle sailed for France, to obtain a commission to plant a
French colony at the mouth of the Mississippi River. He
was determined that the fertile valley of this greatest of all
rivers should belong to France. He obtained his commis-
sion, and in four vessels set sail for the Gulf of Mexico.

In these vessels he carried colonists and supplies, with
the intention of making permanent settlements. He was
disappointed in the character of his men. Many of his sol-
diers were merely vagabonds and beggars from the streets,
who had never handled muskets. Many of his workmen,
whom he supposed were skilled mechanics, proved to be to-
tally ignorant of the trades for which they were employed.
La Salle had almost a constant quarrel with Beaujeu, his cap-
tain. /

The expedition reached the Gulf of Mexico, and La Salle
tried to find the mouth of the Mississippi. This he failed to
do, and finally the whole company landed in what is now
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called Matagorda Bay, in the southwestern corner of Texas.
Here they built a fort, which he named St. Louis. One of
his vessels loaded with valuable stores was wrecked at the
entrance of the bay. Quarrels among the men continued,
until finally Beaujeu and
his crew set sail for
France. One small ves-
sel was left, but this was
afterward wrecked.

La Salle made repeat-
ed journeys to discover
the mouth of the Missis-
sippi. Nearly two years
passed and matters went
from bad to worse. He
finally made a last and
desperate effort to reach
the river, hoping to as-
= KWhat LaSalle cend it and bring relief
| and Hennepin | from Canada to his per-

opm,d forFranod ishing colonists. But

—4 LaSalles Route | upon a branch of the

”“‘“M River Trinity, he was

murdered by one of his

followers. Thus ended in a fearful tragedy the life of
the foremost pioneer of the Great West.

Father Anastace, who stood by his side when the fatal
shot was fired, said: “Thus perished our wise conductor,
constant in adversities, intrepid, adroit, skilled, and capable
of anything. He, who during a period of twenty years had
softened the fierce temper of savage nations, was massacred
by his own people whom he had loaded with benefits. He
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died in the vigor of life, in the midst of his career and labors,
without the consolation of having seen their results.” This
great Frenchman deserved a better outcome for his life’s
work.

But he had done great things for France. He—and we
might almost say he alone—had by his great daring and his
repeated explorations given to his king the entire valley of
the Mississippi River from the Alleghanies to the Rocky
Mountains. '

Give an account of the settlement of Canada.
Describe La Salle’s trip to Illinois; his journey down the Missis-
sippi River; his search for its mouth; his failure and death.

What was the principal business of the French in Canada? Was
this like that of the men in the English colonies? Who first discov-
ered the Mississippi River? Who first sailed down this river? Who
discovered its mouth? What was the principal cause of La Salle’s
final failure?




1727-1759

FoR a hundred and fifty years a contest went on between
the kings of France, Spain, and Great Britain, to see which
of them should finally control America.

At the middle of the eighteenth century, France held the
valley of the St. Lawrence and the entire valley of the
Mississippi, from the Alleghanies to the Rocky Mountains.
These two great valleys formed by far the best portion of the
continent. Spain had Florida, Mexico, and the country far-
ther south. The English provinces lay along the Atlantic
coast from Maine to Georgia.

This contest was finally ended by a war which has usually
been called the French and Indian War. This name means
that it was the war of the English colonies, supported by
the mother-country, Great Britain, against France, with her
American settlers in these two great valleys and her allies
among the Indian tribes. The war closed with the battle of
Quebec.

This battle was not a great one in numbers, but it was
great in its results. General Wolfe, who commanded the
British army, brought into the engagement but little .more .
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than three thousand men, while the French opposed him with
nearly seven thousand. Probably there were less than ten
thousand men actively engaged, but it was one of the decisive
battles of the world, because of the changes which it made in
the future history of North America.

Gen. James Wolfe was one of England’s distinguished
soldiers. His father was Gen. Edward Wolfe, also an officer
of distinction in the British army, who had risen from
grade to grade until he had attained the rank of major-
general. :

James was bred to the army, being adjutant of his regi-
ment when he was but sixteen years of age, a lieutenant-colo-
nel at twenty-three, a brigadier-general at thirty-one, and a
major-general at thirty-two. He was his mother’s boy, deli-
cate, affectionate, thoughtful, and refined. At one time he
wrote to her: “The greatest happiness that I wish for is to
see you happy. If you stay much at home I will come and
shut myself up with you for three weeks or a month and play
at piquet; and you shall laugh at my short red hair as much
as you please.”

How do you suppose this young man looked when he com-
manded the British army at Quebec, wearing the title of ma-
jor-general? “The forehead and chin receded; the nose,
slightly upturned, formed with the other features the point
of an obtuse triangle; the mouth was by no means shaped
to express resolution; and nothing but the clear, bright,
and piercing eye bespoke the spirit within. On his head
he wore a black three-cornered hat; his red hair was
tied in a queue behind; his narrow shoulders, slender
body, and long, thin limbs were cased in a scarlet frock,
with broad cuffs, and ample skirts that reached the knee;
while on his left arm he wore a band of crape in mourn.
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ing for his father, of whose death he had heard a few days
before. * :

The time had come for his decisive battle. His small
army had tried again and again to bring on the contest. The
French occupied the Heights of Quebec, and for a long time

the English could not gain
an approach. Flags of truce
sometimes passed between
the two armies. At one time
a Frenchman said: “You
will demolish the town, no
doubt, but you shall never
get inside of it.” Wolfe re-
plied: “I will have Quebec
if I stay here till the end of
November.”
Finally Wolfe discovered
a narrow path by which he
thought he might scale the
Heights of Abraham. This
path led up from what is now
WOLFE RECITING GRAY'S ELEGY oN THE known as Wolfe's Cove, a
WAY O BATTLE. mile or two up the river from
the city of Quebec. During the night for two full hours
the procession of boats carrying the soldiers floated silently
down the St. Lawrence to this little cove.

General Wolfe was in one of the foremost boats. John
Robison, afterward professor in the University of Edinburgh,
who sat in the same boat, used afterward to tell how Wolfe,
as they floated along, repeated “Gray’'s Elegy in a Country
Churchyard.” Among the verses was one which so soon
illustrated his own fate:
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* The boast of heraldry, the pomp of power, .
And all that beauty, all that wealth, e’er gave,
Await alike the inevitable hour:
The paths of giory lead but to the grave.”

Robison said that, after Wolfe had recited this stanza in a low
voice and quiet manner, he remarked: “Gentlemen, I would
rather have written those lines than take Quebec.” Every-
body was silent in the boat when he made this statement.
No one ventured to say that the hero is greater than the
Joet. , ‘
His men landed rapidly and pushed up the narrow path to
the summit. At the top the sentry challenged them. He
was overpowered, and soon the first detachment was on the
heights called the “ Plains of Abraham.” These heights were
so named because a pilot whose name was Abraham Martin
had owned this piece of ground in the early times of the
colony. This was in the early dawn, but the real battle did
not take place until after ten o’clock.

Montcalm, who commanded the French forces, was greatly
surprised to find that the English had performed the “impos-
sible feat” and had really gained the Heights. He attacked
Wolfe with gallant energy. In the sharp battle which
followed both commanders were wounded. Wolfe led the
charge and was shot in the wrist. He wrapped his handker-
chief about it and kept on. Another shot lodged in his breast
and he sank to the ground. A moment after, some one ex-
claimed: “They run! See how they run!” -

“Who run?” inquired Wolfe.

“The enemy, sir, they give way everywhere.”

“Go,” said the dying man, “tell Colonel Burton to march
Webb’s regiment down to Charles River, to cut off their
retreat from the bridge,” Then he turned over on his
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side and murmured: “Now God be praised, I will die in
peace.”

Montcalm, fighting bravely and impetuously, received a
shot through his body. Some one skrieked: “Oh, my God!
my God! The marquis is killed!” %

“It’s nothing, it’s nothing,” cried Montcalm. “Don’t be

- Sy
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THE DEATHR OF WOLFE.

”

troubled for me, my good friends.” The French were com-
pletely routed. Montcalm was carried within the walls of the
city. He asked the surgeon how long he might live. The
reply was: “Twelve hours, more or less.”

“So much the better,” replied the general. “I am happy
that I shall not live to see the surrender of Quebec.”
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* QUR COUNTRY BBFORE AND AFTER THE FRENCH WAR,
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The next morning he breathed hislast. Lateinthe even..
ing he was buried under the floor of the chapel of the Ur-
suline Convent. A crowd of townspeople witnessed the
burial. Tears and sobs burst forth. It seemed g if the
last hopes of the colony were buried with him.

Indeed it was true that the funeral of Montcalm was the
funeral of New France. Afterfive daysthe city surrendered.

The treaty of peace followed (1763). England demanded
everything and obtained whatever she asked for. She swept
France entirely off this continent. She took for herself all
Canada, the whole valley of the St. Lawrence, and that vast
territory between the Alleghanies and the Mississippi.

She, however, allowed France to cede to Spain all that lay
between the Mississippi and the Rocky Mountains, which was
afterward called “The Province of Louisiana.” With the
triumph of Wolfe on the Heights of Abraham the story of
New France ended and the history of the United States began.

Count de Vergennes at this time was minister from France
to Constantinople. When he heard of the treaty he said:
“ England has overshot the mark. She has gone too far; she
will now tax her American colonies to help defray the ex-
penses of this war. They no longer need her protection,
and therefore will throw off all dependence upon the mother-
country.” What a true prophet he was!

State the position of France, Spain, and England on this continent
before the French and Indian War; after the same war.

Give an account of General Wolfe. Describe the trip down the
river; the ezcent to th~ plains; the battle. Tell the story of the
death of Woifz; of the death of Montcalm.

In looking at the map, remember where the English sailor Cabot
made his voyage, the Spaniard de Soto traveled, and the Frenchmen
Champlain and La Salle explored; do you see any reasons for the
divisions of he map? Why did the English fail so often to “ gain an

proa.ch" to Quebec? Do you think that the hero may be greater

the poet? Each of the generals was glad to die; why?




CHAPTER XVI

Samuel Adams
1722-1803

AFTER the great treaty of 1763, by which France divided
between England and Spain her possessions in North Amer-
ica, the English colonies began a new life.

Before this time the French on the north and west were
continually troubling the English settlements, and the Span-
iards on the south were frequently in conflict *‘with them.
Now Canada and Florida were under English government,
and the thirteen colonies had only the ever-present Indians
to fear.

Another change had come at the same time. These thir-
teen colonies had been small and weak; they had been able
only with difficulty to keep themselves alive; they could not
always protect themselves without help from England. But
now they had outgrown their weakness; their population and
wealth had greatly increased; they had learned in the last
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French war that they could fight well, if necessary; they no
longer felt dependent upon help from England.

On the other hand, England saw that the colonies were
stronger, and thought that they ought now to make return
for her protection to them. The king and the lish Par-
liament believed that the French war had benefited the col-
onies and that they ought to help pay the great expenses that
had come from it.. Therefore Parliament decided to tax the
colonists.

But the colonists considered that this was not right, be-
cause they were subject only to the king and not to Parlia-
ment. They had no voice in Parliament and did not wish
to have. They declared, as the English people had de-
clared hundreds of years earlier, that no one had the right
to tax them; that it was just only for them to tax them-
selves. ‘ .

Thus a struggle began between the mother-country, Eng-
land, and the colonies, over the question of taxation. This
contest lasted for ten years, and was ended by a war which
we call the War of the American Revolution. What Eng-
land did and what the colonies did year by year make an ex-
ceedingly interesting story, but we can tell here only a few
of the most important facts.

The struggle began when Parliament passed the Stamp
Act. :

This Stamp Act required the colonists to buy stamps from
English officers to place upon all legal papers. No newspa-
pers, almanacs, marriage certificates, law documents, or other
important papers could be printed or written unless they were
stamped by the proper officers. As these stamps must be
paid for,.this act was a form of taxation. As soon as the
news of its passage reached America, great excitement arose
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from New Hampshire to Georgia. Speeches were made
against it in colony after colony.

The two leading colonies were Virginia and Massachu-
setts. Virginia spoke first, being led on by the wonderful
oratory of Patrick Henry. This brilliant young lawyer moved
in the Virginia House of Burgesses that each colony had the
right to tax itself. In his famous speech he declared that the
English king, George III., was acting like a tyrant and that
he must expect the fate that comes to tyrants.

Massachusetts quickly followed by inviting the other colo-
nies to send delegates to a Congress to be held in New York
City, to consider what the colonists should do. The Stamp
Act Congress met and made appeals to the king that their
rights be not interfered with. A few months later Parlia-
ment repealed the Stamp Act, the news of which caused great
rejoicing in America. '

Parliament did not, however, yield its right to tax the
colonies, and a year later laid a duty upon many articles
which might be imported by America. Again the colo-
nists were stirred with anger and at once began to resist.
They formed associations which agreed to import none of
those articles upon which the duty was laid.

One of these articles was tea, and for years almost no tea
was seen upon the tables of the patriotic colonists. Asa
result, the money obtained by this taxation was very little
indeed, not sufficent to pay the salaries of the officers who
collected it.

Such a conflict as had here arisen always brings some
great man forward to be a leader. In Massachusetts this .
leader was Samuel Adams. His father had always been an
earnest patriot, and had filled his son with enthusiasm for the

future of Massachusetts and her sister colonies.
8
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The year that the Stamp Act was passed, Samuel Adams
was chosen one of Boston’s four representatives to the Massa-
chusetts Legislature or General Court. He was soon elected
clerk, and for ten years he was the head and front, the leader
in every movement in the colony to resist the English Par-
liament and its claim of the right to tax the colonies. He
took the lead in Boston in the formation of the “ Non-Impor-

A PATRIOT COLONIAL DAME TELLS HER GUEST, ‘‘WE HAVE NO TEA ON OUR TABLE.”

tation Associations,” and daily and hourly guided everything
with his own hand.

Little by little the dispute grew into a quarrel, and the
quarrel became more and more violent. Little by little the
anger of the English authorities and of the colonists increased
until they seemed to have nothing in common.

It needed but a trifle to bring the two parties to blows, and
that came in 1773. King George III. directed that cargoes
of tea should be sent to America and the duty collected upon
it. At once fierce opposition was shown throughout the col-

'
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onies. The first vessel arrived in Philadelphia and was im-
mediately sent back. Another sailed into Charleston harbor,
where the tea was landed, but it was stored in damp cellars
and rotted. A third was compelled to return to England as
soon as it reached New York.

The great struggle, however, came in Boston. Here the
governor was loyal to England, and was determined that the
tea should be landed. Besides, as there had been trouble in
Boston before, English soldiers were stationed in the town
and English war-vessels in the harbor.

When the ships arrived a town-meeting was held in Fan-
euil Hall to determine what should be done. Samuel Adams
took the lead at once, and, in the presence of thousands,
moved that: “This body is absolutely determined that the
tea now arrived shall be returned to the place from whence
it came.” This was agreed to without a single vote “No,"”
and the owner was ordered not to land any of the tea.

The governor, however, refused to permit the return
of the vessels. Another town-meeting filled the Old South
Meeting-House and the streets adjoining. The people again
voted that the tea must be sent back, and the owner went to
the governor for permission. While he was gone the people
waited in anxious expectation; darkness arrived and the
church was lighted only by a few candles, but the crowd still
lingered.

Finally the owner of the tea returned and reported that
the governor still refused. Thereupon Samuel Adams arose,
and said in a quiet but clear voice: “This meeting can do
nothing more to save the country.”

This was doubtless a signal, for immediately a war-whoop
was heard, and forty or fifty men, dressed as Mohawk In-
dians, rushed by the doors. The crowd followed them to the

/’
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wharves and eagerly watched them as they boarded the ves-
sels and threw three hundred chests of tea into the sea.
Nothing else was done; but the tea was not landed nor
was a duty paid. This action at Boston—the “Tea Party,”
as it was called—seemed worse than that of any of the other
colonial towns, and Parlia-
ment immediately began to
punish the rebellious citi-
zens of the capital of Massa-
chusetts Bay.

Now the struggle is
ready to break out into open
fighting. Now an English
general is made governor of
Massachusetts, and to him
is given great power over
the colony. He seeks to
deprive the colonists of all
means of carrying on war,
if they should be driven to

it.
He sends portions of his
Ge 4 army out in various direc-
THE BOSTON TEA PARTY. tions to capture cannon and

ammunition wherever he
hears that any is stored. He tries to seize cannon at Salem,
and his soldiers can scarcely be prevented from firing upon
the people. He attempts to destroy the ammunition stored
at Concord and causes the first bloodshed in the Revolution,
as we shall see in another chapter.
Meanwhile Samuel Adams, John Hancock, and other
Massachusetts patriots are actively at work. Governor Gage
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calls the General Court to meet at" Salem. The' representa-
tives come together and are ready to begin their session, but
their clerk, Samuel Adams, is not present. Has he been
captured by Governor Gage’s soldiers? No! for here he
comes. As he enters the hall he sees a group of Tories, or
friends of the king, gathered about the clerk’s desk, and one
of them quietly sitting in the clerk’s chair.

“Mr. Speaker,” says the clear voice of Adams, “where
is the place for your clerk?” The speaker points to the
place.

. “Sir,” continues Adams, “my company will not be pleas-
ant to the gentlemen who occupy it. I trust they will re-
move to another part of the house.”

Thus, fearless and determined, Samuel Adams won his
way in spite of all opposition. He saw that the colonies
must work together, and he decided that Massachusetts ought
to call a Congress’of all the colonies. But he knew that Gov-
ernor Gage would dismiss the General Court if he should sus-
pect what was being planned.

So Adams and his friends worked quietly, and when all
was ready Adams suddenly locked the door and directed the
doorkeeper to allow no one to enter or leave. He then pro-
posed that a Continental Congress should meet at Philadel-
phia and that five men be chosen to represent Massachusetts
in that Congress.

The Tories attempted to get out of the hall, but Adams
put the key in his pocket. One of them did escape, how-
ever, and carried the news to Gage, who immediately sent a
message to the Court, ordering it to disband. His dismiss-
ing of the Court came too late, however, for not until the
delegates had been chosen was the messenger admitted, not-
withstanding his loud pounding upon the door. The deed was



118 FIRST STEPS IN THE HISTORY OF OUR COUNTRY.

done. Now Samuel Adams must carry on his work at Phila-
delphia as well as at home.

The first Continental Congress met in September (1774),
and a second Congress was called for the next May (1775).
This met just after the first blood had been shed at Lexing-
ton and Concord, and a war had evidently begun. Congress
appointed Colonel Washington to be “General and Com-

A NEW EN’GLAND COLONIAL HOUSE.

mander-in-Chief of the Army of the United Colonies,” and
also took such other stepsas it found necessary to govern the
.country while struggling against English oppression.

All this time very few persons had any desire to separate
from England and become independent. Nearly all the colo-
nists wished ‘merely that the mother-country would grant
them their rights.

Samuel Adams had been for a long time, however, cer-
tain that the struggle must result in independence, but he

saw that the people were not yet ready for such a step. The .

war must continue and the hostility to England must in-
crease, before that end could be reached.

The idea that the colonists should declare themselves free
and independent was first publicly proposed by Thomas
Paine. He published a pamphlet, called “ Common Sense,”
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in which he said that independence must come some time,
and easier now than later.

Soon the colonies began themselves to speak for indepen-
dence. North Carolina directed its delegates in Congress
to agree with other delegates in declaring independence.
Rhode Island voted that it was no longer subject to the king,
practically declaring itself independent. South Carolina took
the next step, followed by Virginia and Connecticut.

Richard Henry Lee, a delegate from Virginia, moved in
Congress that “ These United Colonies are, and of right ought
to be, free and independent States.”

On July 2, 1776, this motion was adopted; and from that
day the United States has been a free and independent na-
tion. A committee of five was appointed to draw up a Decla-
ration of Independence, in which the whole world should be
told the reasons for the separation from England.

Two days later the Declaration of Independence, written
by Thomas Jefferson, was adopted, and the first Fourth of
July had come. Four days later the Declaration was publicly
read to the citizens of Philadelphia, and the great bell on the
Pennsylvania State House was rung. On this bell was the
motto, “ Proclaim‘liberty throughout the land, unto all the
inhabitants thereof.”

A few days afterward the delegates in Congress signed
their names to the Declaration, the name of the President,
John Hancock, heading the list, written in a bold hand,
which, as he said, George III. could easily read.

Samuel Adams continued to be the servant of the people
of his loved colony and State, beirig, in turn, representative
to the General Court, State senator, and governor. Fortwelve
years he had worked early and late, using all his energies and
employing all his powers to lead the thirteen colonies to for-
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get their differences, unite as one people, and manage their
affairs for themselves.

For this purpose the United Colonies must be indepen-
dent, and now they had so declared themselves.

Samuel Adams’ great work was now done. He left it to
other leaders, like Washington and Greene, to bring the war
to an end and compel England to acknowledge that the Uni-
ted States were free and independent.

Give an account of the general causes of the American Revolution.

Tell the story of the Stamp Act and its repeal; of the tea tax and
the “ Tea Party.”

Give an account of Samuel Adams during his earlier actions: in
the Old South Church; in the Salem court-room; as he put the key in
his pocket.

State what Congress did.

Tell how the idea of independence grew in the colonies.

Describe the different steps taken by Congress in July, 1776.

How did Wolfe aid in preparing the way for the United States?
Could the colonies have helped pay the debt without being taxed by
Parliament? What is a tax? Is there a Stamp tax to-day? Whatis a
“ Non-Importation Association”? Was Boston’s destruction of the tea
a worse act than those of the other towns? Can you think of any rea-
son why Governor Gage called the General Court to meet at Salem
rather than at Boston? Was the signing of the Declaration of Inde-
pendence in any way a dangerous act?
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PAUL REVERE, from his romantic story, is one of the most
famous of the Revolutionists. His father was a goldsmith.
Paul was trained in that business, and became expert in
drawing and designing. When the Massachusetts State
House was built on Beacon Hill in Boston, he was grand
master of the Masonic Fraternity and laid the corner-stone.
He was very skilful in working in copper and brass, and
cast many church-bells and bronze cannon.

Revere was a very active patriot during the years preced-
ing the Revolution. Together with William Dawes, he was
a leader in a secret society of about thirty young men, who
watched the movements of the British soldiers and observed
the plans of the Tories. These young men took turns in
patrolling the streets, and whatever they discovered they re-
ported to John Hancock, Samuel Adams, and other patriots.

During this time Paul Revere went to Philadelphia to
learn how to make gunpowder, and on his return he built a
powder-mill and put it in successful operation. When the
Boston “Tea Party” came off, which destroyed so great an
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- amount of tea in Boston harbor, Revere was one of the prime
movers.

As we have seen in the story of Adams, General Gage de-
termined to send an armed force to Concord to capture mili-
tary stores secreted there. He also desired to arrest Samuel
Adams and John Hancock, and to send them to England to
" be tried for treason.

These men were in Lexington preparing to go to Phila-
delphia to join the second Continental Congress. Gage was

HOW REVERE AND DAWES RODE THE NIGHT BEFORE LEXINGTON AND CONCORD.

all ready to send the troops from Boston to Lexington and
Concord, when the patriot General Warren was told that they
were about to start. This was on the night of the 18th of
April, 1775. Warren at once decided to send William Dawes
to Lexington by way of Roxbury, Brighton, and Watertown,
and Paul Revere by way of Charlestown and Medford.

It was a wise precaution on the part of General Warren
to send men to arouse the people and notify Adams and Han-
cock. Warren was shrewd and sagacious. He sent two men -
instead of one, so that if the British should capture one of
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them, the other might perhaps get through. Then, again,
Dawes would notify the people through what is now called
Brookline, Brighton, and Watertown, while Revere waked
those along the road through Charlestown and Medford.

Now think of these two men, earnest in purpose and full
of interest in the cause they served, galloping their horses
along the country roads, stopping at the house of every min-
ute-man, rapping upon the door, and calling upon him to
arise, take his musket, powder-horn, and shot-bag, and hasten
to Lexington to oppose and dispute the passage of the British
soldiers through the country.

The dogs barked, the children were frightened, and a
great commotion was stirred up everywhere. On they went,
and at each farmhouse you might see the tin lantern hastily
lighted, the minute-man buckle on his belt and cartridge-box,
take down his musket from the two wooden pins over the
door, kiss his wife good-by, saddle and bridle his horse almost
as quickly as the story can be told, and ride post haste toward
Lexington Green. :

In the early hours of April 1gth both the young men
reached Lexington and gave notice to Adams and Hancock.
There they were joined by Samuel Prescott, “a high son of
liberty,” and the three rode onward from Lexington toward
Concord, arousing the people as heretofore. On their way,
in the town of Lincoln, they met a party of British officers.
Prescott at once put spurs to his horse, leaped over a stone
wall, and galloped onward for Concord. Revere and Dawes
were taken prisoners and were marched back to Lexington,
where they were released.

And now, at about two o’clock in the morning, the bell
of the old meeting-house at Lexington rang out in sharp and
rapid peals. Its strokes were quick and heavy. Itseemed to
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say: “Rouse-ye, rouse-ye; wake-up, wake-up; free-dom,
free—dom; liber-ty, liber-ty; all-awake, all-awake.” This
midnight peal soon brought together the people of the vil-
lage, old and young, with their firelocks and ammunition,
ready to defend their town and dispute the advance of the
British.

Messages were sent everywhere to all the cross-roads, and
the minute-men of the neighborhood were quickly notified.
What a hurrying and scurrying was there! What intense
anxiety! Men hastily leaving their homes unprotected, their
wives weeping, the children scared out of sleep by the cries;
the men. for the first time in their lives taking arms, without
guides, counsellors, or leaders, hurrying together with one
common impulse to fight their common foe, the insolent
British invaders!

At early dawn the British forces, eight hundred strong,
drew up and formed a line of battle at the village of Lexing-
ton. They were led by Major Pitcairn, who, finding the
minute-men ready to oppose his march, rode out in front of
his troops and cried: “Disperse, ye villains! Ye rebels, dis-
perse! Lay down your arms! Lay down your arms and dis-
perse!” But the patriots stood motionless—*“too few to re-
sist, too brave to fly.”

Pitcairn then drew his sword, discharged his pistol, and
with a loud voice cried out, “ Fire!” The patriots plainly saw
that they could not oppose the progress of Pitcairn’s army;
so they withdrew and left them to go on to Concord.

Among the most alert that morning was William Emerson,
the minister of Concord. He came out gun in hand, his
powder-horn and pouch of balls slung over his shoulder. By
his sermons and his prayers his flock had learned to hold a
defence of their libertiesas a part of their covenant with God ;
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his presence with arms strengthened their sense of duty,
though they would not allow him to fight.

The Americans made a stand at Concord Bridge. There
the British fired upon them, and Major Buttrick, of Concord,

W

THE FIGHT AT CONCORD.
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leaped up and cried out: “Fire! Fellow-soldiers, for God’s
sake, fire!”

“ By the rude bridge that arched the flood,
Their flag to April’s breeze unfurled,
Here once the embattled farmers stood
And fired the shot heard round the world.”

The Revolutionary War had begun. All the way back
to Boston the redcoats marched in great haste, harassed by
the patriots who fired upon them from behind walls and
rocks and trees. The loss of the British during this retreat

A MINUTE-MAN HARASSING THE BRITISH.

was very great. They had marched out of Boston, 1nsolent.
as usual, to the tune of “Yankee Doodle.” They returned
utterly exhausted, leaving in killed, wounded, and missing
nearly three hundred men.

The Continental Congress met and vigorously commenced
to prepare for war. It voted an army, and on the 15th of
June, 1775, George Washington was unanimously elected
commander-in-chief.

Meantime everything in and about Boston displayed
intense activity. The British army held the city and the
patriot army was scattered around it.

The first great battle was fought at Bunker Hill on the
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17th of June. During the previous night the hill had been
fortified by the patriots, and early in the morning the British
opened fire from the deck of a vessel in the channel. Just
after midday three thousand British soldiers landed at the
foot of the hill and marched straight up toward the American
works. They were met by a

terrific discharge of musketry

and retreated in great dis-

order.

The officers rallied the
troops and they advanced the
second time up the hill. The
patriots reserved their fire
till the British were within
five or six rods, and then
the slaughter was fearful. A
second time they retreated,
but British honor was at stake
—the fort must be carried. Flag used by the New England troops
Charlestown had been set on ot the batile of Bumker Ml
fire and nearly five hundred
buildings were burned. Moreover, the Americans had used
up their powder and ball. At the third British charge they
were therefore obliged to retreat.

They withdrew in good order across the neck to the main-
land, but during the retreat General Warren was shot in the
head and died instantly. This was a deep loss to the Ameri-
can cause. The battle was over, and the British held the
field.

An American recently, in Quebec, was shown an old can-
non. The Canadian said:

“We took this cannon from you at Bunker Hill.”
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“Well,” said the American, “you have the cannon, but
we have the hill.” :

This battle showed General Gage that the Americans were
not to be easily subdued. Franklin wrote to his English
friends: “The Americans will fight; England has lost her
colonies forever.”

Give an account of Revere’s early life.

Tell the story of the night of April 18th; of the battle of Lexing-
ton; of the battle at Concord. -

Describe the battle of Bunker Hill.

Why did Revere want to know how to make gunpowder? Why
did Gage desire the arrest of Adams and Hancock? Where do you
understand that General Warren was on the night of the 18th of April?
Why did Pitcairn call the men at Lexington “rebels”? What did the
minute men do after the battle at Concord? Who were the men in
the “ patriot army” at the battle of Bunker Hill? Who won the battie
of Bunker Hill? Did the battle aid the Americans in any way?

A Revoludionary Mushket.




WE have already been made acquainted with Samuel
Adams and Paul Revere, two Boston boys. We have also
heard about Patrick Henry, a native of Virginia. Now we
wish to learn about the most distinguished man that Virginia
ever produced—George Washington.

George Washington was born February 22d, 1732. His
birthplace was not, far from the lower Potomac River, at a
place called Pope’s Creek, in Westmoreland County. His
father was Augustine Washington, and his mother was Mary
Ball. He was the oldest child of his mother, and his father
died when he was eleven years of age. Few sons ever had a
more lovely and more devoted mother, and it is certainly
true that few mothers ever had a more dutiful and affection- -

ate son.
Q
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In those early days the country sections of Virginia had
few inhabitants. Well-to-do people had large plantations and
but few neighbors. Traveling was mostly done on horse-
back. Negro slaves were numerous. Schools were few in
that thinly settled region, but young Washington had the
best advantages that the times afforded. He learned to read
well, to write well, to “cipher” well, and he learned land-
surveying.

In his boyhood he was fond of mathematical studies and
athletic sports. He had great strength and endurance.
Tall, well formed, hardy, he could surpass all other boys in
leaping, jumping, wrestling, and running. In his early
years he formed his schoolmates into a military company and
drilled them in the tactics. In his boyhood he was a born
leader of boys; later, in his manhood he was equally a leader
of men. He was always methodical in his habits, careful,
exact, and thorough in all he did. Many interesting stories
are told of Washington’s boyhood. Some of them, however,
are not true. It is a pity that even good stories, which are
not true, should ever be told, especially of a great man.

But we must not stop for the interesting incidents of the
boyhood and youth of Washington. You must find these
stories in other books, and you will all enjoy reading them.
When he was sixteen years old, Washington was engaged by
Lord Fairfax to survey his wide tracts of wild land. These
lands ran across the Blue Ridge and through the Shenandoah
Valley. It was a severe task for a young man of his years to
undertake. Moreover, it was full of danger. But it was
done in such a manner as to give entire satisfaction to his
friends and establish his reputation as a surveyor.

At nineteen he was appointed adjutant-general in the
Virginia army. When he was twenty-one he was sent by the
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governor of Virginia as commissioner to confer with the offi-
cer commanding the French forces on Lake Erie. This was
a wonderful journey, full of adventures, but accomplished in
safety. He made his report to the governor and his journal
was published.

When only twenty-one Washington was promoted to be
colonel and was made second in command of the Virginia
forces. Then came the fa-
mous expedition of General
Braddock and his disastrous
defeat at the battle of the
Monongahela. Braddock
was killed and the troops re-
turned to Virginia in dis-
order. At the age of twenty-
three Washington was placed
in full command of the entire
force of the Virginia militia;
this was twenty years before ,ouur vernon v wasumveToN's TIME.
the battle of Bunker Hill.

But we must hasten to consider Washington’s part in
that war which made the United States one of the nations of
the earth. Washington was a member of both Continental
Congresses that assembled at Philadelphia, and on the 15th
day of June, 1775, at the earnest request of John Adams, of
Massachusetts, he was unanimously elected commander-in-
chief of all the forces for the defence of liberty.

The battle of Bunker Hill had been fought when, on July
3d, Washington took command of the army, drawing his
sword under an ancient elm which is still standing in Cam-
bridge, Massachusetts. For nearly nine months the British
army under General Gage and Lord Howe was penned up in
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Boston, while all communication between the town and the
surrounding country was cut off.

In March, 1776, Washington fortified Dorchester Heights
by night. The British saw themselves so surrounded and the
city so threatened that Gage and- his forces left the city and

sailed away to Hali-
fax. The Continental
troops marched in, to
the great relief of
the citizens of the
town. On the next
Fourth of July Con-
gress passed the im-
mortal Declaration of
Independence.

The British army,
having been driven
out ‘of Boston, took
possession of New
York City. They in-
tended to obtain con-
trol of the Hudson

River and thus to sep-
THE ELM AT CAMBRIDGE, WHERE WASHINGTON TOOK grate New ~England

COMMAND OF THE PATRIOT ARMY.

from the rest of the
country. Washington so managed as to prevent the British
from carrying out these plans. His army, however, was
now quite small, numbering only six or eight thousand men,

and the outlook was very discouraging.
Washington was obliged to retreat across New Jersey into
Pennsylvania. Then by. a skilful movement he recrossed
the Delaware River and gained the great victories of Tren-
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ton and Princeton, finally driving General Howe back to the
vicinity of New York. Howe left New York (in 1777) and
transported his army south to the Chesapeake Bay. Land-
ing there, he started on the march toward Philadelphia, de-
feated the Americans, pushed on, and entered Philadelphia
unmolested. Washington with his army took up a favorable
position on the Schuylkill River.

While all these movements were going on through New
York, New Jersey, and Pennsylvania, let us see what hap-
pened farther east. In New Jersey our Gen. Charles Lee
had been captured by the British. The British General Pres-
cott was in command of the forces at Newport, and Colonel
William Barton, of the Rhode Island militia, laid a bold plan
for his capture.

With a picked company of forty brave men, Colonel Barton
rowed across Narragansett Bay one dark night, almost di-
rectly under the guns of the British vessels, and tied his boats
to the bushes upon the shore. Then they silently stole
across the fields and surrounded the house where Prescott
was sleeping, disarmed the sentinels, burst open the doors,
and took General Prescott and one of his aides out of their
beds, grasping their clothing and carrying it with them with-
out waiting for the prisoners to dress. They hurried them
down to the water’s edge, into the boats, and succeeded in
‘rowing past the British guard-ship before the alarm had been
given. .

During their hurried march across the fields with the
prisoners not a word had been spoken, but when they were
once seated in the boat General Prescott quietly remarked to
Colonel Barton:

“You have made a bold push to-night, colonel.”

“We have done what we could, general,” was the reply.
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Prescott was exchanged for General Lee, and Colonel Bar-
ton, for his bold and successful enterprise, received a sword
from the Continental Congress.

The first campaign of the British had been to cut the
country in two by holding New York and the Hudson River.
They now made their second great plan, which was to send
an army by way of Canada and Lake Champlain down the
Hudson and- so accomplish what they had failed to do before.
This plan led to Burgoyne’s campaign (in 1777), during
which occurred several battles, and which resulted in the sur-
render of Burgoyne and his army.

Meantime Congress had adopted the “Stars and Stripes”
as a national banner. This flag had thirteen stripes, seven
red and six white, and thirteen stars in a field of blue at the
upper corner next to the staff. The first flag was made by
Mrs. Betsey Ross, of Philadelphia, who lived near the foot of
Arch Street. The house in which that first flag was made
is still standing. This flag was patterned from a pencilled
sketch drawn by General Washington himself. The new
flag was used when Burgoyne's army was marched away as
prisoners of war.

Soon after this, Franklin succeeded in making a treaty
with France, by which the independence of the United States
was acknowledged. This was the first acknowledgment of
our independence by any European power, and the first treaty
of commerce and friendship.

The winter of 1777-78 was a period of great depression to
the American cause, and particularly in the American army.
This army was encamped at Valley Forge, now a picturesque
little village on the right bank of the Schuylkill. It was then
a bleak and desolate place, where the patriots protected
themselves behind breastworks which they had thrown up,
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and lived in poor huts made of fence-rails and earth. One
small room on the ground floor of a stone house, owned and
occupied by a plain farmer, a Quaker, named Isaac Potts,
served both for headquarters and lodgings for General Wash-
ington, the commander-in-chief.

The soldiers suffered much; clothing was scarce and of

WASHINGTON’S FIRST SIGHT OF THE STARS AND STRIPES.

poor quality. Their provisions were scant, and some of
them were without shoes, so that frequently the soldiers
could be tracked by the blood from their naked feet which
crimsoned the white snow. There were three thousand
men unfit for duty, as Washington said, “because they
are barefoot and otherwise naked.” And he added that
“for seven days past they had little else than famine in
the camp.”

Then again, Washington was abused and slandered in a



136 FIRST STEPS IN THE HISTORY OF OUR COUNTRY.

way unwarranted and wicked. It is related that one day
Friend Potts, the Quaker, when on his way up the creek, heard
the voice of prayer. Following the direction of the sound, he
soon discovered Washington upon his knees within the great
forest of tall trees, at a place retired and hidden from view.
His cheeks were wet with tears as he poured out his soul to
God. The good farmer quietly withdrew without being dis-
covered, and when he arrived at his house he said to his wife,
with much emotion:

“Hannah, Hannah, George Washington will succeed! I
tell thee George Washington will succeed! The Americans
will secure their independence!”

“ What makes thee think so, Isaac?” inquired his wife.

“I have heard him pray in the forest to-day, Hannah, and
the Lord will surely hear his prayer. He will, Hannah, thee
may rest assured He will.”

But Congress adopts measures of relief. General Clinton
succeeds General Howe, evacuates Philadelphia, and moves
across New Jersey.

Then occurs the battle at Monmouth Court-house, where
Washington himself saves the day and gains a notable vic-
tory. The British army now retreated to New York, and
Washington took up his position at White Plains. This was
the last important conflict fought in the Northern States.

The next year was another gloomy period, but through
the whole war, whether in victory or defeat, even in the
midst of the greatest discouragements, perplexities, and
difficulties, Washington always preserved that good judg-
ment, self-control, and confidence in the right which were
such marked features of his character and which eventually
brought to him the greatest and most permanent success.

A further account of the progress of the war will be found
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in the next chapter. We must not, however, part with
Washington just here. We shall see, hereafter, that the war
was continued vigorously and under serious discouragements,
until finally the British army under Lord Cornwallis surren-
dered at Yorktown to the combined land and sea forces of the
United States and
France. Practically this
ended the war, and later
our independence was
granted by Great Britain.

General Washington
now retired to private
life, but a new constitu-
tion for the United States
was adopted in 1787, and
under it Washington was
unanimously elected
President. He held that
high office eight years,
from 1789 to 1797, and

refused a third election. PiEe
He died December 14th, ,‘f,){/ - i
I799' thum:v ’ ///,// W/V/
His death caused the
mOSt Sincere mourning, WASHINGTON TURNI:((:U::‘E BATTLE AT MON-

not only all over the
United States, but in every country of the civilized world.
He had conquered Great Britain, the foremost power of the
world on the battlefield. He presided over the convention
which framed our national constitution, and he was chief
magistrate of the young republic for eight years.

An anecdote is told to the effect that, after the treaty of
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peace with Great Britain had been concluded, a grand dinner
was given in Paris in honor of the success of the commission-
ers in arranging terms of peace.

At this dinner the English ambassador offered a toast:
“King George I1I.: like the glorious sun at midday, he illu.

WASHINGTON AT TRENTON.
(From the painting by John Faed.)
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mines the world.” Then the French minister offered as his
toast: “Louis XVI.: like the full moon riding in splendor,
he dissipates the shades of night.” It was now Franklin’s
turn, and all eyes were fixed upon him. The philosopher
slowly arose and called on the company to join him in a toast
as follows: “George Washington: like Joshua of old, he com-
manded the sun and the moon to stand still, and they obeyed
him.”

Washington displayed the highest qualities as a leader of
men, as a military chieftain, and as a statesman. He shrank
from no duty, his patience and perseverance overcame every
obstacle, his moderation disarmed all opposition; his courage,
physical, mental, and moral, was of that kind which knew no
fear whatever. In the case of obstacles which would discour-
age other men, he knew how to conquer by waiting until
‘victory should come.

He stood first among men, not only in the eyes of his
countrymen, but also in the opinion of the world. As his
fame was bounded by no country, so it will be limited to no
age.’

Give an account of Washington as a boy; as a young man.

Describe the campaign about Boston; around New York City; in
New Jersey; near Philadelphia.

Tell the story of the capture of Prescott.
Describe Burgoyne’s campaign; also the last campaign in the North.

Why was the surveying of Lord Fairfax’s lands a “severe task”?
Why was it “full of danger”? Who were the “ Continental troops”?
Why did their entrance into Boston “ relieve” its citizens? How has
the United States flag been changed since it was first made? Why
was Friend Potts so certain of Washington'’s final success?



GENERAL GREENE was a Rhode Islander. His father was
a Quaker preacher. He had a strong and vigorous constitu-
tion, and in his boyhood was foremost in every rural sport
and game. He had a marked passion for books, but his only
schooling was at his father’s house under the direction of a
private tutor for the half-dozen boys in the family.

It is said that “one of the happiest days of his life was
that which first saw him the owner of a Euclid.”

On one occasion when he visited Providence and had fin-
ished the business for which he had come, he hastened to a
bookstore, stepped up.to the counter, and said: “I want to
buy a book.”

“What book?” asked the bookseller. To this young
Greene was unable to reply, and he stood silent and blush-
ing, not knowing what to say. Dr. Stiles, a clergyman from
Newport, afterward the president of Yale College, was pres-
ent and saw the boy’s perplexity.

“So, my boy,” said he, “you want to buy a book and don’t
know what book you want?” “I guess so,” said Greene.
“Well,” said the clergyman, “is it a story book or a school
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book that you want?” “I want a book,” said Greene, *that
will make me know more.” “Well,” said the clergyman,
“there are many such books, for I suppose there are a good
many things which you do not know yet.” “I do not know
much of anything,” said the boy, “but I want to know more.”

So the minister gave him good advice as to what were the
best books to read and what to study,"and became one of his
lifelong friends. Through
the advice of Dr. Stiles
he began to study Watt's
“Logic,” and “Locke on
the Understanding.”

Greene helped to organ-
ize a military company call-
ed the Kentish Guards, and,
arms being scarce, he went
to Boston to purchase a
musket (1774). While in
Boston he witnessed the
drilling of the British
troops, and was greatly im-

Pressed WIth the lmPOSIng ‘1 WANT A BOOK THAT WILL MAKE ME KNOW
appearance of the regulars MORE.”

at their morning and even-

ing parades. Little did the British officers, in the pride of
their gallant array, dream who was looking upon them from
under the broad-brimmed hat of the Quaker, or how fatally
for them the lessons would be applied.

Hiding his musket under the straw in the wagon, he
started for Rhode Island. He took with him a British deser-
ter whom he had engaged as drill-master for the Kentish
Guards,
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Rhode Island voted to raise an army of sixteen hundred
men, and appointed Greene to command them, with the rank
of major-general. See this young man, at the age of thirty-
three, marching his regiment to join the Continental army at
Cambridge. He is appointed a brigadier-general in the
Continental service, and enters upon those military duties
which are to engage his whole attention till the close of the
war. »

He was one of the earliest to recommend a Declaration of
Independence. More than a year before the Declaration was
passed, he wrote to a member of Congress as follows:

“Permit me to recommend, from the sincerity of a heart
at all times ready to bleed for my country’s cause, a Declara-
tion of Independence; and call upon the world and the great
God who governs it, to witness the necessity, propriety, and
rectitude thereof.”

He rapidly won the confidence and esteem of Washing-
ton, and through the whole war was regarded as the second
general in the army, next in command to Washington. He
marched his brigade from Boston to New York, and took a
prominent part in the skirmishes and battles around that
city.

He was with Washington through the long winter at Val-
ley Forge. From there he wrote to a friend: “I have no
hopes of coming home this winter; the general will not grant
me permission. Mrs. Greene is coming to camp; we are all
going into log huts—a sweet life after a most fatiguing cam-
paign.” After this, we find him at the battle of Monmouth,
where his services were of the highest order.

The British General Clinton, determined to transfer the
war to the South, sent a force against Savannah, and took the
city. The British, emboldened by their success, captured
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Charleston after a long siege, and General Lincoln was
obliged to surrender his army. Then General Gates was
placed in command in the South, and lost the battle of Cam-
den. This battle clearly showed that Gates was not the man
for the place.

But we must not forget that notable battle of Kings
Mountain. Colonel Tarleton, unlike most officers of the

British army, was no-
A \:‘sl‘ (V"
4 » YORKTOWN
T
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torious for his extreme
barbarity and inhuman
butchery of prisoners.
Made almost desperate
by Tarleton’s cruelty, an
impromptu band of vol-
unteers, under the com-
mand of Colonels Shel-
by and Sevier, marched
against the British un-
der Major Ferguson at
Kings Mountain, and
after the most severe
fighting gained a com-
plete victory.

Finally General Greene was appointed to succeed Gates
in command of the Southern army. Washington had in-
tended that Greene should have the command before, but Con-
gress had given the position to Gates. Greene’s campaign
was carried on under many disadvantages, but was managed
with great skill. The Americans were entirely victorious at
the battle of Cowpens. They lost but twelve men killed and
sixty wounded, while the British lost one hundred and twenty-
nine killed and wounded and six hundred prisoners. The
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Americans captured one hundred horses with many wagon-
loads of stores.

Tarleton barely escaped with his life. He was wounded
by a blow from the sword of Col. William A. Washington.
Some time afterward, in a company of Southern ladies, Colo-

nel Tarleton said: “I have
been told that Colonel Wash-
ington is very illiterate and
can scarcely write his name.”
“But, colonel,” replied one
of the ladies, “he can at least
make his mark!” ‘Tarleton

said: “I would very much

like to see Colonel Washing-
ton.” The lady instantly re-
plied: “You might have had
that opportunity and pleas-
ure, colonel, if you had look-
ed behind you at the Battle
of Cowpens.”

Greene now increased his
army by new recruits. Then
came the battles of Guilford Courthouse and Hobkirk Hill.

COLONEL TARLETON’S REBUFF.

Cornwallis was in command of the British army in the

South, and he marched northward into Virginia, hoping to
draw Greene after him; but on the contrary Greene moved
South and began to win back the Southern States. Sumter
and Marion captured Orangeburgh, Fort Mott, Granby, Fort
Cornwallis, Georgetown, and Augusta. In September, 1781,
Greene fought the last battle of the war in the far South at
Eutaw Springs. He had reconquered the entire South.

Now the armies are drawn together in Virginia. Corn-
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wallis is there and Washington sends Lafayette thither.
The - French fleet under Count de Grasse sails up the Chesa-
peake Bay and the York River. About the first of September,
Count de Saint Simon joins Lafayette with over three thou-
sand troops. Washington rapidly moves his main army
through New Jersey and on to Virginia. Cornwallis had
fortified Yorktown. The combined American forces sur-
round the town and his retreat by water is blocked by De
Grasse. A hundred cannon are turned upon the British forts
and dismount every one of their guns. The British General
cannot break through the lines, he cannot retreat, he cannot
stay where he is.

So Cornwallis surrendered to Washington, on the 1gth of
October, 1781, and the British fleet to De Grasse. This
practically ended the war, although the treaty of peace was
not made till more than a year afterward and the definitive
treaty a year aftef that (1783). The news of the surrender
of Cornwallis was received with great joy by the people all
over the country. December 13th was observed as a day of
national thanksgiving.

Give an account of Greene's boyhood; of his trip to Boston; of his
joining the army; of his life at Valley Forge.

Describe the war in the South; the battle of Kings Mountain.

Tell the story of Greene’s Southern campaign; of the siege of York-
town; of the surrender and the treaty of peace.

What is a “Euclid”? How did Greene’s trip to Boston aid him?
‘What were the “regulars”? Was life at Valley Forge a “sweet life’”?
How long did the Revolutionary War last? What nations made the
treaty of peace?



BENJAMIN FRANKLIN was one of the most famous men
that America has ever produced. His life covers the greater
part of the last century. He was born in Boston, at that
time the largest town in all the English colonies, but having
less than ten thousand people.

There were then ten colonies along the coast. Baltimore
had not been settled, nor New Orleans. There were no rail-
roads, and not even a stage-coach in the country. At that
time there were three colleges and but one newspaper.

How different was America when Franklin died, an old
man, eighty-four years of age. The Revolutionary War had
been fought, the Constitution of the United States had been
adopted, and Washington had become President. At the
birth of Franklin the population of this country was proba-
bly less than half a million. At his death it was nearly ten
~ times as great.

Franklin was a self-educated man. He went to school
only two years, leaving it when he was ten years of age. At
that time he went into his father’s candle-shop to help make
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candles for the people of Boston. He did not like this occu-
pation and soon grew tired of it. Then his father appren-
ticed him to his brother James, who published a newspaper.
Franklin liked this business better.

While Franklin was at work for his brother, one of his
duties was to deliver the papers to subscribers. One day,
in hurrying around a corner of the street, he suddenly ran
against the table where an old woman was selling apples,
and the apples rolled off upon the sidewalk. Benjamin
picked them up and made his apologies to the old lady. She
was pleased with his intelligence and began to talk to him.

“Do you ever dream, my little man?” she said. “Oh,
yes,” he replied, “I dream sometimes when I've eaten too
much supper.” “Well, do you believe in dreams?” “Oh,
yes,” said Franklin, “I believe in dreams—that is, I believe
that I dream and other people dream.” “Yes,” said she,
“but do your dreams come true?” “Well, no. I don’t
think they do usually. Do yours?” “Oh, yes,” said the old
lady, “my dreams always come true, and I dreamed about
you last night.” “Did you? Well, what did you dream?”
“I dreamed that you bought this book and that you became
avery wise man.” “Well, well! Indeed, what is the book?”
and he picked it up and looked at it. “How much do you
ask for it?”” “Only sixpence, sir.” “Well, I think it would
be too bad for your dream not to prove true just for sixpence,
so I will buy it.”

He went away with this book, which was a copy of the
third volume of Addison’s “Spectator.” With the book he
was delighted. He was charmed not only with the thought,
but with the elegant way in which it was expressed. He
would read one of the short papers, close the book, and re-
write it, partly in his own language. Then, comparing his
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work with Addison's, he was quite inclined to say that Addi-
son’s was the better. In this way he found that a good deal
depends upon how thoughts are expressed, and he began to
study style.

If you will read his autobiography, you will find that he
tells in a charming way how he left Boston when he was
seventeen years old,
went to New York, and
from there to Philadel-
phia. You will be
greatly interested in his
story of how he walked
up Market Street, Sun-
day morning, with a
loaf of bread under each
arm and munching a
third, and how Miss
Read stood at the door
of her father’'s house
laughing at him. Then
you will find afterward
that this same Miss
Read became Mrs. Ben-
jamin Franklin.

Franklin’s first visit to England was when he was eigh-
teen years of age. On reaching London he sought for work
in a printing-office. The foreman said: “ Where are you
from?”  Franklin replied: “From America.” “From
America!” says the printer. “And can you set type?”
“Try me and see,” said Franklin.

He took the composing-stick in his hand, examined the
case of types, noticing that the letters were arranged in the

-

YOUNG FRANKLIN LAUGHED AT BY HIS FUTURE
WIFE.
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boxes in the same way that they were in America, and
within four minutes he set with perfect accuracy the follow-
ing sentences: ‘ "

“ Nathaniel said unto him, Can there any good thing come
out of Nazareth? Philip saith unto him, Come and see.”

When he was twenty years of age he returned to Phila-
delphia, and really began his life-work in that city. He pub-
lished a newspaper when he was twenty-three years old; he
kept a stationery shop, and soon began to publish “Poor
Richard’s Almanac.”

This almanac brought him large profits, and he continued
it for many years. ‘“Poor Richard’s Almanac” contained a
great many homely maxims, which made it very popular and
which had a good influence upon the habits and morals of the
people. Here are a few of these maxims:

“Then plough deep while sluggards sleep,
And you shall have corn to sell and to keep.”

“Vessels large may venture more,
But little boats should keep near shore.”

“Handle your tools without mittens: remember that the cat in
gloves catches no mice.”

“The sleeping fox catches no poultry.”

“ Diligence is the mother of good luck, and God gives all things to
industry.”
“Silks and satins,
Scarlet and velvets,
Put out the kitchen fire.”

“ Many estates are spent in getting,
Since women for tea forsook spinning and knitting,
And men for punch forsook hewing and splitting.”
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“He that by the plough would thrive
‘Himself must either hold or drive.”

Franklin rose rapidly in the esteem .of the people. He
was chosen to fill many offices; he was postmaster of Phila-
delphia and a member of the city government; he was clerx
as well as representative to the legislature; and he was post-
master-general for the English colonies.

He also served the people by his great inventions; he
sent a kite up in a thunder-storm and showed that lightning
was the same as electricity; he made the Franklin stove,
which proved much better than the old-fashioned large fire-
places. He desired to aid education as far as possible; he
founded the University of Pennsylvania, and he started the
first public library in Philadelphia.

When Franklin had become greatly interested in his
studies, they were interrupted by the struggle which led up
to the Revolutionary War. Franklin was appointed by the
people of Pennsylvania as their representative to the British
Government. From this time onward his mind and time
were mostly occupied in public affairs.

Franklin tried his best to prevent the passage of the
Stamp Act, but it was passed and the necessary results fol-
lowed. The Stamp Act led to the next step, and that to the
next, and so on, until the Revolution came, which ended in
the independence of the colonies. Franklin was one of the
last to believe that independence was necessary. Still, when
the time came, Franklin heartily yielded and signed the Dec-
laration of Independence.

Franklin was sent to France to represent the government
of the new republic at the Court of Paris. The war went on;
the contest was uneven between this little republic with its
small army and the great power of England with its experi-
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enced generals. But Washington overcame the difficulties,
and the army was finally victorious through the help of
France, which Franklin by his genius and popularity had se-
cured. Cornwallis surrendered at Yorktown and the war was
at an end.

Next came the treaty of peace with Great Britain. In that
treaty the most important question was what should be our

FRANKLIN AND THE QUEEN OF FRANCE.

western boundaries. Franklin and John Jay of New York
finally succeeded in securing for this country the territory
north of the Ohio, so carrying the western bounds of the re-
public to the Mississippi River. :
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Franklin was now an old man. Soon after the making of
this treaty he returned to his native land for the last time..
Yet he had strength enough to engage in one more great
work for his country. When he was bowed down by the

FRANKLIN AT THE CONSTITUTIONAL CONVENTION ALLUDING TO THE “RISING SUN”
CARVED ON THE PRESIDENT’S CHAIR.

burden of more than four-score years, he was appointed by
the State of Pennsylvania as a member of that great conven-
tion which was to frame the Constitution of the United States
of America.

For four months during the heat of summer Franklin
daily met with his colleagues in the old state-house in Phila-
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delphia, in “Independence Hall,” giving to his country those
wise counsels which came from his long life and varied expe-
riences, his great mental ability, and his remarkable genius.
This convention had a very difficult task to perform. The
delegates represented dif-
ferent States, under differ-
ent conditions, and it was
almost impossible to agree
upon a new Constitution
that would be approved by
the States they represented.

More than a month pass-
ed by before any successful
agreement had taken place
among the members. One
morning when the conven-
tion had assembled, Frank-
lin arose and said:

“How has it happened,
sir, that we have not hith-
erto once thought of humbly
applying to the Father of
Lights to illuminate our un- “INDEPENDENCE HALL,” IN PHILADELPHIA,
derstandings? In the be-
ginning of the contest with Britain, when we were sensible
of danger, we had daily prayers in this room for the divine
protection. Our prayers, sir, were heard; and they were
graciously answered. Have we now forgotten that powerful
Friend, or do we imagine we no longer need His assistance?
I have lived, sir, a long time; and the longer I live the more
convincing proofs I see of this truth, zkat God governs in the
affairs of men. And if a sparrow cannot fall to the ground
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without His notice, is it probable that an -empire can rise
without His aid?”

The convention finally succeeded in framing a Constitu-
tion that all could agree to. It was not perfect, but it was
clearly the best that could be obtained. Franklin said of it,
in a speech to the convention just before the vote was taken:
“Thus I consent, sir, to this Constitution, because I expect no
better and because I am not sure that this is not the best.”

While the different members of the convention were sign-
ing the Constitution, Franklin stood rubbing his eye-glasses
and looking toward the president’s chair, on the back of
which was represented the sun upon the horizon, shooting its
slanting rays upward. Franklin turned to the member
standing near him, and remarked that painters have found it
difficult to distinguish in their art a rising from a setting
sun. “I have,” said he, “often and often, in the course of
the session and the vicissitudes of my hopes and fears as to
its issue, looked at that picture behind the president without
being able to tell whether the sun was rising or setting; but
now at length I have the happiness to know that the sun of
America is rising.”

Franklin continued to exert himself for the public good
until the very end of his life. Just before his death he
signed a memorial to Congress, praying for the abolition of
slavery in the United States, and the very day before he died, -
in the midst of extreme suffering, he finished a paper upon
this subject., His age was a little above eighty-four years.

Without question, Benjamin Franklin was one of the
greatest men of hisage. When the news of his death reached
France, the National Assembly put on mourning. The
Frenchman, Turgot, said of Franklin: “He snatched the
thunderbolt from the sky and the sceptre from tyrants.”
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Franklin and his wife were buried in the graveyard of
Christ Church, Philadelphia, at the corner of Fifth and Arch
Streets. Over the two graves is a large stone slab, bearing’
this inscription:

BENJAMIN

AND }FRANKI.IN
DEBORAH

1790

\
)

When Franklin was a young man and a printer in Phil
adelphia, he wrote his own epitaph:

THE BODY
OF

BENJAMIN FRANKLIN,
PRINTER,
(Like the cover of an old book,
Its contents torn out,
And stript of its lettering and gilding,)
LIES HERE, FOOD FOR WORMS.
BUT THE WORK SHALL NOT BE LOST,
FOR IT WILL (as he believed) APPEAR ONCE MORE
IN A NEW AND MORE ELEGANT EDITION,

REVISED AND CORRECTED
BY

THE AUTHOR.
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State some of the changes in American life that Franklin saw.

Tell the story of the book and its value to Franklin.

Give an account of “ Poor Richard’s Almanac.”

State some of the ways in which Franklin served his countrymen.

Tell what Franklin had to do with the Stamp Act; with the
Declaration of Independence; with the Treaty of Peace; with the
Constitution of the United States.

‘Why do you suppose young Benjamin disliked the candle business?
What different things are mentioned that helped Franklin to become
a writer? Do you understand why Franklin set up those particular
sentences for the London printer? What do we mean by * homely”
maxims? Why should we “handle our tools without mittens”? How
do “silks and satins put out the kitchen fire”? Who passed the Stamp
Act and how did Franklin try to prevent its passage? What did
Franklin do in France for the United States? Why was Franklin one

of the greatest men of his age?

THE YOUNG NATION AT ITS START.



A FEW days after General Washington and his little patri-
otic army entered Boston, in the spring of 1776, a young boy
was hurriedly walking along a trail in the woods of what is
now Kentucky. As he passed a spring, bubbling up by the
side of the path, he saw a wild duck drinking the cool waters.
Like every pioneer boy, he was an expert shot, and in a few
moments the duck was roasting over a fire which the boy had
kindled.

Suddenly the youth was startled by the sound of a step;
but it was a firm tread, not the stealthy glide of an Indian
moccasin. Looking up, he saw a young, soldierly appearing
man approaching; a man “square-built, thick-set, with high,
broad forehead, and sandy hair.” The newcomer briskly
called out:

“How do you do, my little fellow? What is your name?
Ar’n’t you afraid of being in the woods by yourself?”

The voice of the stranger was pleasing and cordial. The
boy felt no fear of him, and invited him to taste the duck.
The man was evidently hungry, for he continued to taste
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until the duck was entirely eaten. Then the boy asked his
new friend what his name was. A

“My name is Clark,” was the answer, “and I have come
out to see what you brave fellows are doing, and to help you
if you need any help.”

George Rogers Clark, who thus suddenly arrived at Har-
rodsburg, had come, on foot and alone, from Virginia. He
was twenty-three years of age, and well educated for those
days. Born in western Virginia, he grew up a great hunter;
he was from boyhood familiar with frontier life, always ex-
posed-to Indian attack. He had learned surveying in his
youth, and, armed with axe and rifle, chain and compass, he
had become so used to tramping through the wilderness and
the forests that he dared to travel to Kentucky without com-
panions.

Such a life as it was in Kentucky in those days! Ordi-
narily the families moved into the new country in groups.

First they built a stockade fort for common use. This was a
square piece of land, surrounded by a palisade or wall of upgs

right logs. At the corners were strong blockhouses, also
made of logs, and fitted with portholes, through which guns
could be fired. Within this palisade were cabins, so built
that the back of the cabin was a portion of the palisade itself.
Entrance to this fort was by a great gate, which was made as
firm as possible and provided with strong bars to keep it shut
against the most violent attack.
‘v The families also had their own cabins upon the farms or
“clearings” at greater or less distances from the fort. They
came to the fort only when there was war with the Indians
or when they feared an attack. Those days of anxiety and
constant fear can hardly be understood by us.

At any time the word of warning might come. Often it

oo
.
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came at night. Then the family, quietly sleeping in their
little cabins, far removed perhaps from any neighbor, would
hear a tapping at the door. Instantly all the older people
would be awake, for they were always watchful and could
easily be aroused by the slightest sound. In a moment every
one would be in motion. The father would seize his gun
and ammunition. The mother would wake and dress the

A MIDNIGHT ESCAPE TO THE FORT.

children. The older ones would carry the younger, perhaps,
or at least some household article, and, with as little delay as
possible, the house would be deserted.

A light they did not dare to have. Not a sound was it
safe to make. The greatest care was used not to waken the
baby, who would be sure to cry. To the other children, the
word /ndian was enough to prevent a whisper. Thus the
family hurried along the trail to the fort. The men then
spent the rest of the night in making every preparation for
the expected attack. If it did not come, all waited through
the day in readiness for the dreaded warwhoop the following
night. '

Perhaps the Indians did not come; then the families would
return home in a day or two, only to be ready again for the
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next alarm. Perhaps they would go too soon; perhaps the
message would not arrive in time. Then the result was too
terrible almost for thought.

Such was life in Kentucky and Tennessee at the begin-
ning of the Revolution. Such was life in other new territo-
ries and States at a later day. Nevertheless, the hardy pio-
neers continued to press forward. Taking their lives in their
hands, they continually moved westward, leaving the more
settled regions behind them. Many men seemed to be una-
ble to live near their fellow-men; the uninhabited wilder-
ness alone pleased them. Like the father of Kit Carson,
they would move farther into the forests because neighbors
had come within three miles of them. Others would con-

" tinue in their new home and see the little fort become a vil-

lage, the village become a town, and the town become a city.
They would let other hardy adventurers carry the advancing
settlements farther west.

When Wolfe won the battle. of Quebec and laid down his
life, the English settlers all lived east of the Alleghany
Mountains. By the treaty with France (1763), however, all
the region between the mountains and the Mississippi River
had been ceded to Great Britain. When the Revolution be-
gan, a few pioneers had crossed the mountains and had set-
tled in what is now Kentucky and Tennessee. North of the
Ohio no English settlements had been begun, though some
traders were travelingthrough this great Northwest, buying
furs of the Indians.

The French had built a few forts to hold this land, in the
years between La Salle and Wolfe. These the British gov-
ernment now held. The most important were Detroit, now
in Michigan; Kaskaskia, near the Mississippi River, on the
western side of the Illinois; and Vincennes, on the Wabash,
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in southwestern Indiana. It was very important for the
final success of the United States that we should hold all this
western territory, rather than that any foreign power should
possess it.

Neither Congress nor Washington’s army paid any atten-
tion to this territory during the entire war. Congressdid not
appreciate its value, and the army had all that it could attend
to near the coast. One man, and one only, seemed to realize
how important the region would be to the United States, and
also that it could be obtained in spite of the neglect of Con-
gress.

A year after Clark arrived in Kentucky he was carefully
making plans to capture the whole of the great Northwest.
Accordingly, he sent scouts into the Illinois region, who
brought back to him reports concerning the fort at Kaskaskia
and its condition. Then he hastened to Virginia to seek
assistance from the State government. He went to Virginia,
because that colony had always claimed this western territory
as a part of the grant to Virginia.

Leaving Harrodsburg in October (1777), Clark started on
foot, and in a month, after traveling six hundred and twenty
miles, he reached his father’s house. Resting here but a
day, he hastened on to Williamsburg, where he was delighted
to hear the news of the surrender of Burgoyne. -

Clark at once laid his plans before Patrick Henry, the
governor of the State. Henry was just the man to approve
the daring scheme, and entered intoitatonce. He appointed
Clark colonel, gave him permission to raise seven companies
of militia, loaned him twelve hundred pounds, and gave him
an order for supplies to be obtained at Pittsburg.

Clark raised a force of a hundred and fifty men, and, with

his supplies, left Pittsburg the next May. With him went a
Iz
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number of families for whom the little band acted as an es-
cort. The party floated down the Ohio River, a distance of
hundreds of miles, nearly all the way through an unbroken
forest and past wild lands with no white inhabitants.

They reached the Falls of the Ohio, where Clark left the
settlers, thereby laying the foundations of Louisville.

The little army took the boats again and floated farther
down the Ohio. Landing opposite the mouth of the Ten-

CLARK AT THE BRITISH DANCE,

nessee River, concealing the boats in a small creek, and rest-
ing but a single night, as he desired to surprise the fort,
Clark struck out rapidly across the hills toward Kaskaskia.

Arriving near the fort on the evening of the fourth of
July (1778), Clark made preparation for the attack. Divid-
ing his force into two divisions, he spread one out around the
town and led the other directly to the walls of the fort.

The surprise was complete. Within, a dance was in
progress, and even the sentinels had left their posts. Clark
placed his men at the entrance; then he quietly entered a
rear gate and the dance-hall itself. There he stood, silently
leaning against a doorpost, watching the dancers.

Most of the Indians who usually idled around the fort
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were at the time on a hunting expedition, but one of them
had not gone; he lay upon the floor near the entrance. No
one else noticed the newcomer; but the Indian gazed ear-
nestly at him, and then sprang to his feet with a war-
whoop.

The dance ceased; all was confusion. But Clark quietly
told them to continue. He added, however: “You are now
"dancing under Virginia, and not under Great Britain.” The
men then burst in, the commandant, Rocheblave, was seized,
and Kaskaskia changed hands without bloodshed. The peo-
ple were mainly French, and were not unwilling to take the
oath of allegiance to the United States.

The French priest at Kaskaskia offered to go to Vin-
cennes and persuade the French people there to yield volun-
tarily to the United States. In this he was successful; the
Stars and Stripes were hoisted, and the people met in the
church and swore allegiance to the new Republic. Governor
Hamilton, the English officer in command at Detroit, led
out a large force and retook Vincennes without opposition.
He had fivé'hiindred men with him, while Clark had but one
hundred at this time at Kaskaskia. The latter did not dare
make an attack, and winter found them both still waiting for
the next move.

Little by little, however, Hamilton’s force grew smaller,
until at the end of January (1779) Clark learned that the
British commander had but eighty men at the fort. He de-
cided upon an immediate attack. Early in February Clark
set out from Kaskaskia with one hundred and seventy men.
The distance to Vincennes was over two hundred miles,
across a country covered with water. The ice in the rivers.
had melted and freshets had overflowed the land.

The men, with little food, suffering severely from hunger,



164 FIRST STEPS IN THE HISTORY OF OUR COUNTRY.

were obliged to wade for miles through water breast deep,
with floating ice all around them. That was a terrible march.
The sufferings of the men cannot be told. After sixteen
days of such traveling, the little army reached Vincennes,
surprised the town, and laid siege to the fort. The next day
Hamilton and the garrison surrendered.

Thus Colonel Clark, with a few men, by his own bravery,

his strong personal character, and his great military skill, in

spite of wuntold obstacles

and terrible sufferings, con-

quered the entire Northwest

Territory. He obtained pos-

session of all the important

forts and settlements, and

gave to the United States

complete possession of the

Ohio River and the eastern

bank of the Mississippi as

THE OLD * NORTHWEST.” far seuth as the Florida

boundary. When the treaty

of peace was made with England (1783), the United States,

after much discussion, finally secured this Western region,

largely on the ground that Clark had conquered the terri-

tory and held military possession of it at the time the treaty
was made.

Clark captured the country for Virginia and under the
direction of the Virginia government. The assembly of
that State thanked him and his officers and men “for their
extraordinary resolution and perseverance, and for the im-
portant services which they had rendered their country.”
Afterward it granted two hundred acres of land to each of
the soldiers.



.

GEORGE ROGERS CLARK. 165

~ Give an account of how Clark entered Kentucky.
Describe a frontier palisade.
Tell the story of an Indian alarm.
State the situation in the Western region at the beginning of the
Revolution.
Tell the story of Clark’s journey to Virginia; of his voyage down
the Ohio; of his capture of Kaskaskia; of his march to Vincennes.

In what was Clark like Washington? Why was a light not per-
mitted nor sound allowed, when the settlers were hastening to the
fort? Do you know of any Western fort that isnow a city? Why was
possession of the Western region “necessary to the success of the
United States”? Has it been of any advantage other than a military
one? Was an escort needed by families who were moving west down
the Ohio River? Why were the French settlers at Kaskaskia and
Vincennes ready to take the oath of allegiance to the United States?

PIONEER FAMILIES PUSHING INTO THE NORTHWEST.
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CHAPTER XXII

Alexander Hamilton

1757-1804

-HAMILTON

LEss than a month after Samuel Adams had locked the
doors of the court-room at Salem and had put the key in his
pocket, a meeting of patriots was called in New York City
(July, 1774). This meeting was held in the open air and was
attended by crowds of citizens. The speakers were quiet and
without enthusiasm; the speeches did not arouse the people;
the meeting was proving a failure.

Near the platform a young student was standing. He
had been in the colonies two years only, but he had become a
most earnest patriot. He felt that the people would never be
brought to oppose English oppression by any such half-
hearted remarks. He thought that many things that ought
to be said had not been said.

Quickly he pushed his way through and climbed upon
the platform. When there was a suitable pause, the youth
stepped to the front without being announced or introduced.

For a moment the boy stood hesitating, as the throng
stared, surprised at his boldness. He was but seventeen
years old and looked younger. In another moment a laugh
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would have followed, or perhaps cries to come down and not
interrupt his elders. But the boy’s embarrassment was over
and he began to speak.

He was a born orator, and in a few minutes his thoughts
came faster than he could utter them. The crowd listened
with close attention as he gave clear and sound reasons for
resisting the king. A murmur ran through the audience:
“Hear the collegian! Hear the collegian!” The meeting
was no longer a failure; the people of New York were ready
to follow Patrick Henry and Samuel Adams.

Who was the seventeen-year-old boy? His name was
Alexander Hamilton, and this was the first public step in a
life full of service for his adopted country. During the next
two years Hamilton was busy in the cause of the colonists.
He wrote pamphlets replying to the leading Tories of New
York. Hetook part in public meetings and spent much time
in studying military affairs. When the British army left
Boston and came to New York, Hamilton was appointed com-
mander of a new artillery company, though still less than
twenty years of age.

One incident that happened during the interval between
Hamilton’s first public speech and the arrival of the British
army in New York illustrates a remarkable trait of his char-
acter.

He was but a boy and filled with all a boy’s,rashness and
daring. Yet he had the cool mind of a much older man.
More than once Hamilton was able to prevent the mobs in
New York from committitig violence. The British ship-of-
war Asia at one time opened fire upon the town. At once all
was commotion and excitement. The “Liberty Boys” began
to threaten injury to every Tory in the city. Among the
most prominent of these Tories was Dr. Cooper, the president
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of the college. The mob rushed to his house. On the steps
they found Hamilton ahead of them, determined to prevent
or delay their entrance. He at once began to speak, urging
them to show reason and not to commit any rash act. Just
at this point President Cooper called out to the crowd from an
upper window, advising them not to be guided by such a
madman as Hamilton. Then
he fled by a rear entrance.

Hamilton had perhaps
saved the old man’s life,
while the worthy president
supposed that his young stu-
dent was urging the people to
attack him. It was a fine act
in the boy thus to risk his
life and his influence “in
behalf of law, order, and
mercy.”

Five years passed before
the surrender of Cornwallis.
Much of this time young
Hamilton was an aide on the
staff of General Washington
and met many leaders of the
day. His principal employment was to answer the many
letters which the general received; but he was present at
all the great battles and always acted with courage and
bravery. In the siege of Yorktown Hamilton led a brilliant
charge against the enemy, attacked them with great vigor,
and carried everything before him.

Hamilton was much more than a mere orator or a gallant
soldier. He was an earnest student of all matters connected

HAMILTON LEADING THE CHARGE AT
YORKTOWN,
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with the government. Soon after the war was over he began
to see that the States must be united more closely. He was
certain that, though they had kept together during the
war, because of their common danger, they would quarrel
now that peace had come. So, together with George
Washington, James Madison, and other statesmen, he
wrote and worked for a convention to form a more per-
fect union.

Four years after the peace of 1783, the Federal Conven-
tion met in Philadelphia. For four months the delegates
from the different States worked in secret, until they had
prepared the Constitution of the United States.

Before this could be used it must be accepted by at least
nine of the States. As the proposed Constitution was very
different from the form of government under which the
country had been governed for several years, many people
did not like it and tried to have it defeated.

For many months the contest for and against the new
Constitution continued in the different States. One by one
they accepted it, until finally the decision seemed to rest on
New York. If that State adopted it, the necessary nine States
would have been obtained. The New York convention met
with forty-six members opposed to the Constitution and nine-
teen in its favor. Day after day discussion followed discus-
sion, and Hamilton was on his feet continually, answering
objections and giving arguments. Finally the convention
voted, and three more votes were given for the Constitution
than against it. Hamilton had won, and the Constitution of
the United States was adopted.

Now the new government must be begun and Presidential
electors chosen in the different States. There was but one
man thought of for President—the general who had so skil-
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fully carried the army through the Revolution and had then
quietly retired to his home at Mount Vernon. He was truly
“first in war, first in peace, and first in the hearts of his coun-
trymen.” Every vote was cast for George Washington for
President. John Adams, of Massachusetts, was elected Vice-
President.

When Congress had counted the electoral votes, messen-
gers were sent to notify Washington and Adams. The Presi-

Ly u Al

WASHINGTON’S JOURNEY TO HIS INAUGURATION.

dent-elect left Mount Vernon and traveled in his carriage
to New York City. Everywhere he was enthusiastically wel-
comed by the people, who rode by his carriage as he came
into and left the towns; who gave him public dinners; who
scattered flowers in his path; who built triumphal arches
under which he must go. From the New Jersey shore he
was rowed to the city by thirteen oarsmen, in a handsomely
decorated barge, and was saluted by the firing of thirteen
guns.

On the 30th of April, 1789, Washington was inaugurated
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President at Federal Hall on Wall Street. He passed through
the troops into the hall, where Congress awaited him. When
the Vice-President announced that everything was ready for
the oath of office to be taken, the President-elect went to the
balcony of the building. This overlooked the street, which
was densely packed with citizens who waited in respectful

 Paderal Hall ~ Rabo 2 uani

FEDERAL HALL, NEW YORK, WHERE WASHINGTON WAS INAUGURATED PRESIDENT.

silence. Washington solemnly took the oath to “preserve,
protect, and defend the Constitution of the United States,”
and with closed eyes whispered:

“So help me, God!”

Then the air was rent by the joyous cry of the people:
“God bless our Washington! Long live our beloved Wash-
ington!”

The minister from France afterward wrote: “Tears of joy
were seen to flow in the hall of the Senate, at church, and
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even in the streets, and no sovereign ever reigned more com-
pletely in the hearts of his subjects than Washington in the
hearts of his fellow-citizens.”

After the inauguration the new President chose his Cabinet
—men who were to advise him and to help him carry on the
government. The two leading officers were the Secretary of
State and the Secretary of the Treasury. Washington ap-
pointed Thomas Jefferson to the first position; of him we will
read in another chapter. He chose Alexander Hamilton to
have charge of the Treasury.

Here the great mental powers of the young man showed
themselves. The government of the United States had
been unable to pay its debts for more than a dozen years.
It had borrowed money and could not pay the interest; it
still owed the soldiers who had fought for it in the Revolu-
tion. Its credit was gone; by this we mean that it had little
" or no money, and no one would lend it any.

It was Hamilton’s task to give the government a new
credit; he must provide ways by which money could be ob-
tained; he must make it certain to everybody that the United
States could and would pay all its debts. All this Alexander
Hamilton, as Secretary of the Treasury, did. He thus per-
formed a service for his country which may be considered as
important as is the service of a great general in carrying on
a war. :

Had the United States not been able to pay its debts, it
would have failed just as surely as if it had not obtained its
independence by the War of the Revolution.

Hamilton remained in the Cabinet of the first President
until his great work was done. Then he resigned, and prac-
tised law until he died at the early age of forty-seven.

Meanwhile Washington was unanimously chosen a second
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time, but declined a third term. He also retired from public
life, and spent his last years at his home at Mount Vernon.
Here he died, after having served his country faithfully all
his life, and after having been honored by his country with
every honor which they could give him.

Describe the meeting in New York; the steps taken by Hamilton
before the Revolution began; his work during the Revolution; his
part in obtaining the adoption of the new Constitution; his service as
Secretary of the Treasury.

Tell the story of Washington’s journey and inauguration.

How did Hamilton prevent the meeting in New York from being a
‘failure? What did he have that the other speakers lacked? How did
Hamilton's position on the staff of General Washington aid him in his
later life? What caused the great change in the voting in the New
York Convention? Why did Washington travel from Mount Vernon
to New York in his own carriage? How else could he have traveled?
Why were there thirteen oarsmen and thirteen guns? Is credit any
less necessary to a nation than to a business man?

THE OLD CONTINENTAL MONEY.
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CHAPTER XXIII

Thomas Jeﬁ‘erson
1743-1826

A FEW months after General Wolfe’'s victory at Quebec
(1759), a seventeen-year-old boy entered Williamsburg, the
capital of Virginia. The youth belonged to one of the best
families of the country, and had friends and relatives almost
from one end of the colony to the other.

Yet young Thomas Jefferson had never before seen a town,
nor even a village of twenty houses. To him Williamsburg,
with its two hundred houses and its thousand inhabitants,
seemed almost as large as London itself; to him the splendor
and elegance of the first families of Virginia, as they lived
their gay life when the colonial legislature was in session, were
hardly less brilliant than those surrounding the king of Eng-
land at the Court of St. James.

This young man had come to the capital to attend William
and Mary College, the second oldest college in all the colo-
nies. He was fond of study and spent more hours over
his books than most of the students did; yet he never failed
to take needed exercise, being especially skilled in horseback
riding. While at Williamsburg he became acquainted with
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nearly all of the leaders in Virginia life, and thus obtained
an education that does not come from books.

Five years after Jefferson first entered Williamsburg he
was still at the capital, studying law. One of his earliest
friends, Patrick Henry by name, a man a few years older
than he, a new member of the
House of Burgesses, was visit-
ing young Jefferson. During
this visit the news of the pass-
ing of the Stamp Act reached
the town, and this action of A
Parliament was thoroughly dis- 1 l
cussed in the student’s room.

One day Jefferson learned
that Henry proposed to make
a speech in the House, urging
resistance to the Stamp Act.
When the day came he stood in
the rear of the hall, listening to
the glowing words of Henry's
famous speech. )

. PATRICK HENRY IN HIS GREAT SPEECH

Let us listen with Jefferson AGAINST THE STAMP ACT.
for a moment. Let us imag-
ine the feelings of the patriotic youth as he hears his friend,
in the midst of his enthusiasm, say: “Czesar had his Brutus,
Charles I. his Cromwell, and George III.”—and here he
paused. What would be the end of the sentence? Did
Henry propose some harm to the king?

Here and there in the hall was heard the cry, “Treason!
Treason!” and it would have been treason had Henry finished
as they expected. But no! after the pause came the words,
“George III. may profit by their example.” Henry was
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right. Had George III. been wiser, had he read history
aright, and had he profited by former examples, he might
have saved the colonies. He did not, and he lost them.

But here was Thomas Jefferson drinking in every word
and profiting by it. From this hall he went to take his
share in the coming conflict. A few years of quiet, in which
the young man married and built his charming home at
Monticello, and the struggle broke out. Jefferson prepared
the instructions for Virginia’s delegates to the First Conti-
nental Congress.

He was himself a member of the Second Congress. Here,
in June (1776), a committee was chosen by ballot to draw up a
Declaration of Independence. Thomas Jefferson headed the
list, and with him were John Adams of Massachusetts, Ben-
jamin Franklin of Pennsylvania, Roger Sherman of Connec-
ticut, and Robert R. Livingston of New York. When the
committee met they urged Jefferson to prepare the draft; he
consented, and, with a few changes of words, the immortal
Declaration of Independence was adopted as Jefferson wrote
it. For this he has rightly been called the “ Framer of the
Declaration.”

From this Congress Jefferson returned to the Virginia
House of Burgesses, and three years later succeeded Patrick
Henry as governor of the State. This position he filled while
the British armies were active in the South, and he was still
governor of Virginia when Cornwallis surrendered at York-
town. After a few years as minister to France, succeeding
Franklin, Jefferson became Secretary of State, which position
he held until after Washington was re€lected President.
Then he retired for a few years of rest at his home in Vir-
ginia.

When Washington declined a third term as President, the
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people of the United States were not agreed as to his succes-
sor. There were two parties, Federalists and Republicans;
the former selected the Vice-President, John Adams, as their
candidate for President; while the other party were in favor
of Jefferson. Adams was elected. Four years later another
election took place. Adams was defeated and Jefferson was
chosen President.

Then for eight years (1801-1809), Thomas Jefferson was
at the head of the nation, at a time when there was constant
danger of war between the United States and either England
or France. The war did not come, however, until three
years after Jefferson had refused a third term as President.

Among the many great acts during these eight years, none
was more important than that by which the territory of the
United States was doubled. When the treaty of peace with
England was signed in 1783, the United States had for its
western boundary the Mississippi River. Spain owned the
western bank of this great river throughout its whole extent,
and also both banks near its mouth. Contrary to treaty,
Spain closed New Orleans as a port of deposit for our citizens.
This was a serious injury to the new States and territories
west of the Alleghany Mountains.

But just as Jefferson became President, Spain sold to
France not only the island of New Orleans, but also the great
province of Louisiana, from the Mississippi River to the
Rocky Mountains.

Jefferson now determined, if it were possible, to buy New
Orleans, and Congress voted two million dollars for the pur-
pose. Robert R. Livingston, our minister to France, was
directed to try to purchase the island from Napoleon, and
James Monroe was sent to France to assist him.

While Monroe is making his long and tedious voyage
12 .
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across the Atlantic, let us see what is going on at Paris.
When Livingston received by letter his instructions from
President Jefferson to purchase the island of New Orleans,
he at once approached Talleyrand, the French secretary of
state. But Talleyrand would not discuss the question, and
turned the conversation into another channel. Again and
again Livingston pressed the subject, but without success.

Meantime difficulties had arisen between France and Eng-
land. Napoleon, who was now at the head of the French
Government, saw that war with Great Britain was sure to
come. He feared that the English navy would capture New
Orleans and take possession of the whole province of Louisi-
ana. Then the thought came to him, why should he not sell
that whole province to the United States. If war was com-
ing he needed money, and, if the sale could be made, the
price that the United States would pay for the province would
greatly help his treasury.

When Napoleon had thought out this plan, he called to
him two members of his cabinet to discuss the question.
This was on Easter Day, 1803. To these two ministers he
outlined his plan and asked their opinion. Berthier, the sec-
retary of war, was the first to speak. He opposed the scheme
with great zeal. The province was a valuable one and long*
ago it had belonged to France. They had now just regained
possession of it. It would be cowardly to sell it for fear the
British would capture it. After he had made his argument
in opposition to the plan, Marbois, the secretary of the
treasury, replied, favoring Napoleon’s proposition.

Now think of these three men quietly discussing this sub-
ject all the evening, until late at night. The next morning,
early, Napoleon had decided the question and sent for Mar-
bois. He said to him:
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“The time for inaction has past. I renounce Louisiana.
It is not only New Orleans that I will cede, it is the whole
colony, without any reservation; but I renounce it with the
greatest regret. I direct you to negotiate this affair; have an
interview this very day with Mr. Livingston.”

That Monday evening Livingston wrote a letter to Presi-
dent Jefferson, and in it he said: “ While I was at dinner to-
day I looked out of the win-
dow and saw the secretary
of the treasury coming up
the avenue. He had never
before called upon me un-
announced. As soon as I
was at liberty I received
him in the drawing-room,
and we talked of this and
that. When he had gone I
was quite as much at a loss
to know what he had come
for as when he came. Dur-
ing our conversation, however, I mentioned the subject of
New Orleans, and, after reflecting a moment, he asked me
why we didn’t propose to buy the whole province. I re-
plied: ‘ We do not want it. We have no money to pay for
it. We have no authority to buy it, the Constitution not
giving any authority to the general government to increase
our territory.’” '

But the next day Marbois and Livingston had another in-
terview upon the subject. It soon became apparent to Liv-
ingston that Napoleon would be willing to sell the whole
province, and on the arrival of Mr. Monroe our two minis-
ters, after carefully considering the whole question, were so

e

NAPOLEON DECIDES TO SELL LOUISIANA,
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impressed with the great advantage which would come to our
country from controlling this vast area, that they determined
—although they had no authority to make such a treaty—to
assume the responsibility.

And so they concluded a treaty with France by which that
country ceded to the United States the entire province of
Louisiana, embracing the whole country from the Gulf of

Mexico on the south to
the British possessions
on the north, and from
the Mississippi River to
the Rocky Mountains.
This more than
doubled the territory of
the United States.
P'l{:i“l When Napoleon signed
| the treaty, as he laid
down the pen after affix-
ing his name to the doc-
ument, he said: “This
accession of territory
LIVINGSTON AND MONROE CONGRATULATING EACH forever Strengthens the
OTHER ON THE PURCHASE OF LOUISIANA. .
power of the United
States, and I have just given to England a maritime rival
that will sooner or later humble her pride.”

Marbois signed the treaty; then Livingston and Monroe.
When Mr. Monroe had written his name, he arose from the
chair, turned to Mr. Livingston with manifest emotion, and
the two shook hands. Then Livingston said:

“You and I have lived long and done many things for
which our country will remember us with gratitude, but
when we have gone from this world that which we have done

—
e
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HOW THE LOUISIANA PURCHASE ENLARGED OUR COUNTRY,
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to-day will stand out as the noblest work of our lives. The
treaty which we have just signed has 